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A Letter from the President & CEO
Dear Shareholders,
In 2021, First Bancorp, Inc., the parent company of The
First Bank and Trust Company, continued to execute
our strategic plan, and the enclosed results reflect the
success in achieving the ambitious goals that were
set for the year. With these outstanding results, the
company exceeded all of our financial goals for 2021,
continuing to enhance shareholder value.
The company generated net income of $42.1 million
or $5.08 per share as compared to $32.2 million
or $3.88 per share in the previous year. This was a
result of continued focus on the net interest margin,
increased non-interest income, overall excellent
asset quality and the company’s operating efficiency
coupled with a lower than average percentage of nonperforming assets and strong loan growth. First Bank
and Trust Company ended 2021 with over $2.8 billion
in assets, generating a 16.95% return on average
equity while distributing a dividend of $1.84 per share.
The 2021 dividend was 22.7% higher than the previous
year and represents the 30th consecutive year of
dividend increases to our shareholders.
During 2021, the company continued to invest in our
employees, providing training and rewarding them
for a job well done. We implemented significant
enhancements to our physical and electronic security
systems, as well as launching an upgraded mobile
banking app. New offices were added to provide
for additional growth opportunities in existing
markets and in our newest region in North Carolina.
The addition of our Red Oak full service office and
Lillington and Mount Airy loan production offices in
North Carolina will provide additional lending and
deposit opportunities to drive profitable growth.
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The First Bank and Trust Company was proud to be
able to assist our communities by participating in
the Paycheck Protection Program (PPP), providing
forgivable loans of more than $388 million to support
local businesses, farms and other organizations. The
Bank and its employees also donated to healthcare
organizations, food banks, schools and other entities
to ensure that basic needs in our communities were
addressed and to promote long term viability. These
activities are reflective of our overall culture and core
values that are recognized by our communities and
customers.
In the past two years, in the face of difficult
situations, the employees of First Bank
and Trust Company have demonstrated
unyielding resiliency to overcome any
obstacle and produce extraordinary results.
No matter what future tests lie ahead, I am
confident that our employees are prepared
for any challenge.
We will continue to build on our momentum as
we look to 2022 and beyond. The employees of
our company worked tirelessly to ensure that the
communities served had access to essential banking
services during the pandemic, providing exceptional
customer service through traditional as well as
technology based services, and that will never cease
to be our primary focus. The company will continue
to evolve, adapting to new ways of doing business,
and implementing strategic initiatives to provide for
greater efficiency and productivity, such as becoming
“paperless” by 2024. We will continue to evaluate
expansion opportunities in our existing markets and
other potential new markets.
Our customers remain affected by the labor
shortages, supply chain issues and overall economic

conditions arising from the pandemic. With persistent
inflation and the expectation of a rising interest rate
environment, Management will be diligent to ensure
that our products are appropriately priced based on
the risks taken. The First Bank and Trust Company
has managed through numerous interest rate cycles
before, and is well prepared to take on the challenges
that 2022 and beyond may bring.
The mission of the company remains focused on
building shareholder value. Management’s execution
of the strategic vision provided by our Board of
Directors will continue our history of positive earnings,
providing capital growth and strength for our
shareholders, employees and overall communities.
We will continue to accomplish our goals by evolving
to meet to market demands, maintaining state-ofthe-art technology, providing world class customer
service, serving our communities, and rewarding and
developing our employees while maintaining our core
values and culture.
The story of First Bank and Trust Company, from
modest beginnings in Russell County, Virginia with $1
million in capital, to a $2.8 billion institution spanning
three states, is extraordinary. While remarkable, our
story is not complete, with many more chapters yet to
be written. Together, we can and will continue to be
recognized as a “World Class Community Bank”, that
recognizes the value of being “Nationally Recognized
and Community Focused.”
As always, we thank you for your business and
continued support.
With appreciation and respect,

W. Mark Nelson, President & CEO
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Board Transition

C.B. Yates, Jr.

Sometimes, change is unavoidable and becomes
necessary to provide for a company’s long-term
stability. With the untimely death of Director A.
Benton Chafin, Jr. and the retirement of Director C.B.
Yates, Jr., the First Bancorp, Inc. Board of Directors
found itself with four remaining Directors. In order
to maintain stability on the First Bancorp, Inc. Board,
and to strategically position the First Bank and Trust
Company for continued success well into the future,
First Bank and Trust Board Member Sophie ChafinVance was elected to the First Bancorp, Inc. Board
of Directors in April 2021 to fill the vacant seat left by
A. Benton Chafin, Jr., along with N. Trent Yates who
was elected to complete the term of retiring Board
Member C.B. Yates, Jr. In addition, David Leonard,
II, Ronald Barrett, II and Raleigh Hayter – all current
First Bank and Trust Company Board Members, were
appointed to the First Bancorp, Inc. Board of Directors
at the Bank’s re-organizational Meeting in April 2021.
This transition allowed for both Boards to consist of
nine established members, providing strength and
stability with all Board Members sharing a common
goal of remaining committed to the Bank’s founding
values that have played a pivotal role in making First
Bank and Trust Company among the top performing
banks in the nation.

C.B. Yates, Jr. retired
from the First Bancorp,
Inc. and First Bank and
Trust Company Board of
Directors in April, 2021 after
having served devotedly
on the First Bank and
Trust Company board
for seventeen years and
the First Bancorp, Inc.
board for six years. Mr.
Yates provided many years of visionary guidance,
exceptional leadership and unconditional commitment
to the Bank’s success. A true banker, who also served
as a First Bank and Trust Loan Officer from 1990 to
2007, he provided invaluable insight and frank advice
that has played an integral part in the Bank’s strategic
direction. During his years of service, he played a vital
role in helping First Bank and Trust Company become
a world-class bank that supports the individuals,
businesses and communities it serves. The Board
of Directors is forever grateful to Mr. Yates for his
significant contributions to the growth and success of
the organization.
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Five Year
Summary

2021

2020

2019

2018

2017

Interest Income

103,456

92,145

86,366

76,224

67,494

Interest Expense

8,927

11,408

17,458

12,819

8,079

Net Interest Income

94,529

80,737

68,908

63,405

59,415

Provision for Loan Losses

4,212

7,313

1,138

1,033

-399

Other Income

21,783

19,379

14,005

13,707

13,452

Other Expense

58,507

52,687

46,743

43,121

40,204

Applicable Income Taxes

11,458

7,959

7,023

6,591

12,928

Net Income

42,135

32,157

28,009

26,367

20,134

Net Income

5.08

3.88

3.38

3.18

2.43

Cash Dividends Declared

1.84

1.50

1.38

1.25

1.15

Book Value

31.53

28.36

25.99

23.92

22.06

Loans, Net

2,078,153

1,939,680

1,576,270

1,495,298

1,387,659

Securities Available for Sale

93,263

13,843

21,030

28,256

39,986

Securities Held for Sale

3,147

3,634

10,551

11,998

12,882

Total Assets

2,846,353

2,344,110

1,948,529

1,810,942

1,713,231

Deposits

2,483,865

1,988,616

1,617,773

1,516,617

1,420,324

Capital

261,612

235,029

215,502

198,168

182,915

Average Equity to Average Assets

9.55%

10.38%

10.91%

10.81%

10.70%

Return on Average Assets

1.62%

1.48%

1.48%

1.50%

1.21%

Return on Average Equity

16.95%

14.25%

13.59%

13.86%

11.32%

Cash Dividends Declared as
Percent of Net Income

36.21%

38.68%

40.79%

39.30%

47.30%

Summary of
Operations

Per Share Data

End of Period
Balance Sheet Summary

Selected Ratios
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Net Income

in millions

109%

2021

$42.1

2020

$32.1

2019

$28.0

2018

$26.4

over five years

2017

$20.1

2021

$262

2020

$235

2019

$216

2018

$198

2017

$183

2021

$2,846

2020

$2,344

2019

$1,949

2018

$1,811

2017

$1,713

2021

$2,107

2020

$1,965

2019

$1,594

2018

$1,512

2017

$1,403

2021

$2,484

2020

$1,989

2019

$1,618

2018

$1,517

2017

$1,420

increase
Total Capital
in millions

43%

increase

over five years
Total Assets

in millions

66%

increase

over five years
Total Loans

in millions

50%

increase

over five years
Total Deposits
in millions

75%

increase

over five years

A Note of Thanks
to our Shareholders

Encompassing North Carolina,
Eastern Tennessee and most of Virginia,
we are blessed to live in an area with abundant
natural resources and rich natural beauty, like the
New River, pictured in the background. While we gain
strength from our region, First Bancorp, Inc. similarly
draws strength from our greatest natural resource
– the support and devotion of our approximately
1,100 shareholders, most of whom live and work in
our market areas. First Bancorp, Inc. is a closely held
institution, which means that our shareholders are
our customers and neighbors. Unlike many banks
whose stock is controlled by institutional investors
or hedge funds with no connections or loyalty, our
shareholders have a vested interest in the success
of the Bank and the communities we serve. The New
River is one of the oldest rivers in the world, and one
of the very few that run from South to North. Like
the New River, First Bank and Trust Company does
not follow the course of most institutions, but seeks
to chart our own unique path that will continue to
produce abundance for our shareholders throughout
generations.
Another key to the success of our organization is
that substantially all of our 430 employees are also
shareholders of First Bancorp, Inc., whether holding
shares individually or participating through the
Bank’s 401k and stock ownership plan. Employees
don’t just have a job, they have a direct financial
stake in the overall success of the Bank, incentivizing
exceptional effort and teamwork which leads to
extraordinary results.
Shareholders continued to be rewarded in 2021
with a 22.7% growth in dividends over the prior year,
including a special bonus dividend paid in July, as
well as continued appreciation in share value. We
thank our shareholders for their loyalty, investment,
and continued faith in our organization.

81%

60%

over the last five years

the last five years

increase
in stock appreciation

increase
in dividends paid over

As a long-term shareholder, I am very pleased with
the quality of my investment. Even during times of
challenging economic conditions, the Bank has
delivered good financial results and a stock price
and dividends that have steadily grown over time.
– Rick K., Shareholder since 1979
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Growth and Locations
In November, 2021, an office was opened in Red
Oak, NC, our first full service branch in that state. In
addition, two other Loan Production Offices were
opened in North Carolina, in Mount Airy and in
Lillington. In Virginia, one new Loan Production Office
was opened in the rapidly growing area of Daleville,
just North of Roanoke, Virginia.
In 2022, Management will continue to evaluate
potential areas for growth, but only in markets that
demonstrate characteristics that align with the
Bank’s business model and strategic vision, and
where experienced bankers can be recruited to
lead those expansion efforts. In particular, continued
development in Virginia and North Carolina will be a
priority, along with the evaluation of opportunities in
East Tennessee, the briskly growing upstate South
Carolina area, as well as the agriculturally-rich regions
of North Georgia.

Full-Service Office
Loan Production Office

Dale

Full-Service Office (North Carolina)

Mount Airy
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eville

Lillington

Mount Airy
Famously recognized for the iconic Pilot
Mountain pictured in background, Surry
County, North Carolina is home to the City
of Mount Airy, the site of the initial location
established by First Bank and Trust Company
in the State of North Carolina. Sharing a border
with Virginia, and situated less than 50 miles

from our Wytheville office, Surry County is
a natural extension for the Bank, providing
additional opportunities for commercial and
agricultural lending. Led by Mount Airy’s own
Travis Wilmoth, a veteran banker with twenty
years of experience, Mount Airy serves as the
foundation for the Bank’s strategic expansion
within North Carolina.

North Carolina
In 2021, First Bank and Trust Company was
proud to establish a presence in North Carolina,
operating as First Bank and Trust Company of
Virginia. To differentiate First Bank and Trust
Company from similarly named and branded
institutions currently operating in North Carolina,
the Bank operates with an alternate logo, more
of a maroon color rather than our traditional red,
yet still instantly recognizable to our existing
customers. Bank branding in North Carolina
identifies the Bank as “First Bank and Trust
Company of Virginia.”
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In 2021, the Bank opened our first full service
office in Red Oak, North Carolina. Additional loan
production offices were established in Mount
Airy and Lillington, following the acquisition of
highly qualified, seasoned lending personnel.
From these three offices, the Bank is poised
to capitalize on agricultural and commercial
opportunities within the state. Beginning with no
balances, loans outstanding in North Carolina
grew to $27.3 million at the end of 2021.
Expansion within the state of North Carolina will
be a key strategic initiative for First Bank and
Trust Company in the coming years.

Lillington
“We are so excited to be a part of the First Bank and
Trust family! Red Oak, North Carolina had one bank
in the town, and that bank closed suddenly in 2020,
leaving the community with nowhere to conduct
bank business. First Bank and Trust stepped in and
brought back banking services to our town, and our
residents couldn’t be more appreciative!”

– Amy Stobaugh, Branch Operations Supervisor

“I am honored to be part of the First Bank and Trust
Company expansion into North Carolina, and I look
forward to growing the commercial and agricultural
portfolios in both my local and regional community,
capitalizing on the many new exciting opportunities in
this area.”

– Trevor Smith, SVP/ Ag & Commercial Lender

Technological
Efficiencies
The pandemic has left many lasting effects on
the way businesses operate and how employees
continue to perform their job functions while working
from alternative locations. Working from alternative
locations became necessary for many employees
of First Bank and Trust as they navigated the
overwhelming effects of the pandemic including
illness and quarantine. It became management’s goal
that while some employees were physically separated
from their usual workspaces, the exceptional level
of customer service that our customers have come
to expect from First Bank and Trust would not be
diminished. This became an opportunity for innovative
companies like First Bank and Trust to expedite the
adoption of digital technologies in the workplace
setting the standard for technological efficiencies in
the banking industry.
First Bank and Trust recognizes technology’s strategic
importance as a critical component in allowing our
employees to provide world-class customer service.
To ensure that there were no interruptions to vital
banking services during the shutdowns, First Bank
and Trust continued to implement technological
enhancements responding to ever changing customer
and employee needs. A key strategic decision, made
in 2019 and implemented throughout the last three
years, was to replace eligible employee desktop
computers with mobile laptops, allowing for secure,
remote access and the ability to work from alternative
locations. Having the ability to work remotely with
laptops enabled our employees to seamlessly perform
their job functions, access customer information at
any time and provide exceptional customer service
as they worked from remote work sites. With data
provided from a July 2021 survey with 301 employee
respondents, about one quarter of our employees
reported working from alternative locations during the
pandemic utilizing the bank-issued laptops.
Looking forward to 2022, plans are in place to
relocate the existing Operations Center to the
former Rite Aid building, which was most recently
utilized to house the West Abingdon branch while
the new branch and Corporate Center were under
construction. Design plans for the remodel of
the building include flexible work stations so that
employees are provided with a variety of different
places and ways to work, allowing for increased
collaboration and technological efficiencies.

Remote Work
The Covid-19 pandemic of 2020, which stretched
throughout 2021, changed the way employees
performed their jobs, not just in banking, but in most
industries. Benefits of allowing employees working
remotely have been proven to increase productivity,
improve employee retention and morale, reduce
overhead costs, and expand the available talent
pool for organizations – no longer must a qualified
individual have to live in proximity to a bank facility.
While some organizations have resisted these
changes, the management of First Bank and Trust
Company embraced the remote work concept for
those employees whose job duties allow them to
do so – without compromising our expected level
of world-class customer service. In the years to
come, First Bank and Trust will continue to innovate
and adapt to changing business environments and
employee work expectations to ensure continued
success and profitability.

“Originally starting in 2007, I worked for First Bank
and Trust Company for 13 years at the Abingdon
Operations Center. In 2020, a job transfer for my
spouse necessitated that my family had to relocate
to Michigan, and I regrettably had to resign from
First Bank and Trust. In November, 2021, I rejoined
the Bank, working remotely from my home here in
Michigan. With the technology that has been put in
place, I am able to perform my job just like I was in
Abingdon, communicating seamlessly with customers
and other employees and providing world-class
customer service. I am so appreciative to be back with
my bank family!”
– Crystal Jewell, ACH & Wire Transfer Specialist

“Working remotely is not really a new concept for First
Bank and Trust Agricultural lenders, we have been
going to our customer’s farms for years, providing
innovative financing solutions for their operations,
while making it convenient for them. This experience
paid off during the pandemic, as it was not necessary
to be in an office to be able to take care of my
customers. We were able to service our existing
customers at a high level while at the same time
achieving record new loan growth.”
– Bradley Webb, SVP/Agricultural Lender
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Agricultural Lending
The Agricultural Lending Division of First Bank and
Trust Company continued its track record of growth
and success in 2021, growing outstanding balances
from $488.9 million at the end of 2020 to $571.8
million at December 31, 2021, representing a growth
rate of 17% or $82.9 million. This increase was
achieved by the continued growth in our existing
markets, along with the addition of several highly
qualified agricultural lenders and the expansion into
new markets, primarily in North Carolina. Despite the
persistent low-rate interest environment experienced
during 2021, the Agricultural Lending Division
enhanced the diversity and profitability of the Bank’s
lending efforts with innovative lending focused on
credit quality, yield, and service to the agriculture
community.

“As we further expand in Tennessee and into
North Carolina, we find that customers are
excited to work with a partner bank that truly
understands agriculture. Our experience and
commitment to agricultural lending gives us a
real competitive advantage over other lenders
in those new markets.”
– Roy Settle, VP/Agricultural Lender
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The expansion into North Carolina (operating as First
Bank and Trust Company of Virginia) and our initial
success there is expected to produce even greater
results for the Agricultural Division going forward.
As in Virginia, agriculture is the number one impact
industry to the economy of North Carolina and our
development of that market is expected to provide an
avenue to enhance the strong results of the Division
going forward.
With twenty-four experienced agricultural lenders
servicing Virginia, Tennessee and North Carolina,
providing knowledge, innovation and excellent
customer service, the Agricultural Lending Division
is well positioned to maintain and expand First
Bank and Trust Company’s brand as a the premier
agricultural lender within the region.

“Those of us who are involved in farming know it’s not
a job but rather a way of life. I am thankful to work at
a bank that really understands that, and provides me
the opportunity to help my customers realize their
dreams and enjoy continued success.”
– Hilary Thompson, AVP/Agricultural Lender
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Paycheck Protection
Program Loans
In early 2021, the United States government, in
response to the continuing pandemic, announced
that there would be a “second round” of the Paycheck
Protection Program (PPP) loans, to provide small
businesses with the resources needed to maintain
their payroll, hire back employees who may have
been laid off, and cover applicable overhead. As in the
initial round one PPP loan program, the loans were
fully-guaranteed by the United States government and
carried an interest rate of 1%. Just as they did in 2020,
First Bank and Trust Company lenders and support
staff responded when called, and originated 3,702 PPP
loans totaling $135.5 million in the second round to
assist small businesses, farms and other organizations
during a critical time. Combined with the PPP loans
made under round one in 2020, First Bank and Trust
Company made a total of 6,687 loans totaling $388
million under the PPP loan program, providing much
needed assistance to our customers and communities.
All PPP loans were structured as forgivable loans,
providing the borrower supplied all program-required
documentation and certifications. At December 31,
2021, 4,231 loans totaling $328.4 million from both
round one and two had been forgiven, leaving 2,456
PPP loans with a balance outstanding of $59.6 million
at year end. Many of the PPP loans were extended
to non-customers, who banked at other institutions
who either couldn’t or wouldn’t participate in the PPP
program. As a result, many of these loans resulted
in new customer relationships and deposit accounts,
further aiding the growth of the organization.
“It was very gratifying to be able participate in the
PPP program and help keep vital small businesses
and farms in our communities afloat. The fact that
we could implement this program in a matter of days
speaks to the level of dedication of our employees
and leadership alike, rising to the challenge when
called.”
17 | 2021 Report

– HB Hunter, VP/Agricultural Lender

Commercial Lending
The overall lending results produced in 2021 were
nothing less than extraordinary. The Bank’s core loan
business grew balances outstanding by $264.9 million
during the year, while at the same time maintaining
a consistent loan yield and reducing past-due and
nonperforming loans to their lowest levels in decades.
Loans past-due and non-accruing decreased from
0.68% at the end of the previous year to 0.52% at
December 31, 2021. These impressive results were
accomplished amid the backdrop of an ongoing
pandemic and the associated restrictive protocols put
in place to protect our employees and our customers.
Management continued to build the Allowance
for Loan Losses in 2021, committing an additional
$4 million to that reserve. The reserve for loan
losses grew to $29.0 million at December 31, 2021,
representing 1.42% of loans outstanding, excluding
PPP loans.
While the bar has been set extremely high, the Bank
will continue to build on the successes achieved
in 2021, by developing our new markets in North
Carolina and Morristown, Tennessee, and continuing
to evaluate opportunities to enter into new markets
both in Virginia and in surrounding states. Amidst the
growth, credit quality will continue to be a priority
while we focus on maintaining an above-average
yield on loans. Diversification in individual loan
segments will be closely monitored to mitigate both
geographical and concentration risk from future
economic trends and cycles in various industries.

“With over twenty years of experience in banking,
I’ve had the opportunity to work with many different
people from all types of organizations, but I find the
family atmosphere First Bank and Trust Company
truly refreshing. I consider myself fortunate to be part
of a group where teamwork is the rule, rather than
the exception, and we all pull together to get the job
done.”
– Chris Guy, VP/Commercial Lender
Our Story | 18

First Trust & Wealth
Management
First Trust & Wealth Management, a division of First
Bank and Trust Company, provides comprehensive
wealth management and financial planning solutions.
Our team of experienced investment professionals
hold an array of licenses and certifications and
represent diverse backgrounds in the private banking
and financial services industry. As fiduciaries, we are
relationship driven and always act in the best interest
of our clients.
The division continued a trend of strong growth in
2021, with assets under management increasing 22%,
to $235.2 million at December 31, 2021, a year over
year increase of $42.4 million, with the vast majority
of that growth representing new business. Total

revenues from Trust & Wealth Management increased
42% from the prior year, from $1.2 million in 2020 to
$1.7 million in 2021.
In 2022, First Trust & Wealth Management will
continue to develop new streams of revenue to
complement our investment management fee
revenue, including Private Client Lines, 401(k) services,
and estate settlement. We will continue to grow the
team with experienced advisors in new markets to
meet the growing demand for our services. As interest
rates rise and the business cycle evolves, First Trust
& Wealth Management will continue to proactively
deliver advice and ideas to our clients with a focus
on long term relationships and exceptional customer
experiences.

“The commitment we have to our clients is real.
We truly focus on the financial well-being and
goals of our clients, delivering tailored investment strategies and building relationships that
endure from one generation to the next.”
– Scott Arnett, Investment Manager/Trust Officer
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Mortgage Lending
For the second consecutive year, the Mortgage
Division of First Bank and Trust Company produced
record results. A favorable interest rate environment
for borrowers, coupled with a reputation for
excellence in customer service, propelled the Division
to new heights, even with the challenges presented by
the ongoing pandemic. With 2021 new mortgage loan
production of over $352 million, the division increased
mortgage loans outstanding to $186 million, with loans
sold rising to $669 million, an 11% increase over 2020
totals. Loans sold on the secondary market, while
not included on the balance sheet, continue to be
serviced by First Bank and Trust Company, maintaining
that vital customer link while mitigating interest rate

risk to the Bank and producing a stream of ongoing
servicing revenue. The expectation of higher interest
rates in 2022 and beyond will be a challenge to the
Mortgage Division, but it is well positioned as a market
leader to respond to an increasing rate environment.
In 2021, new mortgage originators were added in the
Daleville, Virginia and Morristown, Tennessee loan
production offices. Continued expansion, particularly
in the new North Carolina market, along with our
seasoned team of Mortgage Bankers and a full array
of niche mortgage products will provide the Mortgage
Division the opportunity to build upon and further its
track record of success.

“There is no better feeling than helping a person
be able to purchase or build a home, whether it is
a starter house or their dream forever home! I am
proud to represent First Bank and Trust Company
to offer our clients a comprehensive menu of
mortgage products with exceptional customer
service like no other bank in our area.”
– Katie Curry, AVP/Mortgage Banker
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Deposit Results
First Bank and Trust Company experienced another
year of outstanding deposit growth in 2021. For the
year, total deposits grew $495 million, the largest
year over year deposit increase the Bank has
ever accomplished. Total deposits at December
31, 2021 stood at $2.5 billion, with non-interest
bearing deposits comprising 29% of that total, or
$720.4 million. With a continued low interest rate
environment, the cost of deposits declined 38%, from
an average of 0.48% in 2020 to 0.30% in 2021.

facility in Bristol, Tennessee helped drive deposit
totals. In addition, a strategic initiative by management
for commercial deposit acquisition was instrumental in
growing the deposit totals of commercial enterprises.
The Bank also continued the commitment to our
customers to provide world-class customer service
and cutting-edge technology, as demonstrated by
the mid-year launch of the Bank’s new mobile app,
providing more function and convenience than ever
before.

Deposit growth was driven by several factors,
including continuing government stimulus programs
for both personal and non-personal customers,
including the second round of the Paycheck
Protection Program (PPP), and increased deposits
from our public depositors. Two new full service
banking facilities – one in Red Oak, North Carolina,
and the relocation of the West State Street, Bristol,
Virginia office to the new Pinnacle Shopping Center

The exceptional deposit growth was achieved even
while our employees continued to manage the day-today constraints and challenges presented by ongoing
pandemic protocols. In recognition of their tireless
efforts and outstanding performance, a $1,000 bonus
was paid to all employees on December 30, 2021.
Looking forward to 2022 and beyond, the Bank will
build on this momentum, continuing to improve and
refine electronic delivery channels, redesign the
Bank’s existing website, and continuing to focus on
commercial deposit growth, particularly in the noninterest bearing category. And as always, providing
the absolute best customer service experience
possible.

“In 2021 we were proud to deliver an enhanced
mobile and online banking experience to
our customers, and the reviews have been
overwhelmingly positive! With enhanced
functionality including online customer service
chat and Zelle payment ability, along with
strengthened security features and a more
intuitive interface, our customers have the
tools needed to manage their accounts from
anywhere.”

– Brittany Poe, E-Commerce Supervisor
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Commercial Deposit
Management
2021 was another successful year for the Commercial
Deposit Management Team, with a 15% increase
across all commercial deposit services customers.
Taking advantage of new relationships created by
our participation in the Paycheck Protection Program,
our team found many opportunities to establish
commercial operating deposit relationships and
provide other services. In total, over 7,000 commercial
electronic services customers processed over $3.9
billion in transactions in 2021, a substantial increase
over the prior year.
The Commercial Deposit Management team continues
to meet the challenges presented in today’s business
climate, consistently adapting to evolving technology
and trends, ensuring our customers have access
to state-of-the-art solutions for their operational
needs. We offer a unique approach to account
opening by understanding and establishing all the
businesses’ needs from the initial discussions of their
deposit considerations. As part of the Bank’s overall
“paperless” strategy initiative, electronic approval
on all account documents was implemented in 2021,
streamlining opening processes and increasing

convenience for our clients. The Bank continues to
invest heavily in technology and training, providing
local support for the solutions we provide. Several
new payment processing software solutions for field
and virtual work environments were deployed during
the year, ensuring that our services remain relevant to
support a continued evolution of remote workforce. A
significant upgrade to our online and mobile banking
platform provided new and noteworthy capabilities
to the most basic functions of daily banking needs.
Understanding our client’s needs and providing
recommendations and solutions to streamline
processes, improve efficiency and save time remains
the theme that drives the Commercial Deposit
Management team to serve our customers and the
Bank.

“2021 brought another year of great opportunities
and challenges. It was a proud moment to open
the new Pinnacle branch location, expanding
our services to one of the busiest commercial
areas of the Tri-Cities. We are committed to our
focus on relationships, listening and responding
to the changing business climate, and valuing
the challenges our commercial customers face
by providing specific solutions to enhance
their efficiencies and cash flow. It’s an exciting
time to be a part of the Commercial Deposit
Management team!”
– Kathryn Keith, Business Relationship Officer
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Adoption of
Electronic Services
The Bank’s focus in providing exceptional customer
service extends beyond the face-to-face interactions
our front-line staff, loan officers and other bank
representatives traditionally have with customers.
We recognize that customer preferences vary, and
that convenience plays a crucial role in providing
consistent, high quality service.
In August of 2021, the Bank implemented a chat
feature as part of the enhanced digital banking rollout. A team of over thirty associates was formed
to assist customers through this new channel of
customer service. The Chat Support Team has taken
the Bank’s customer service to an unmatched level,
offering customers the ability to ask questions and
resolve discrepancies in a matter of minutes. Since
introducing the enhanced digital banking platforms,
the Chat Support Team has responded to over 13,000
conversations! Customers have expressed their
appreciation for the new feature, and the Bank has
seen a steady increase in online banking enrollment
over the past seven months.

“Answering our customer’s chat messages
has quickly become one of my favorite daily
responsibilities! We can quickly resolve issues for
our accountholders, and really I enjoy being able
to assist customers from all of the Bank’s markets,
instead of just my branch.”

– Kassidy Justice, E-Commerce Specialist
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Hi there - I just tried to change my
consumer loan payment amount
and cannot seem to figure out how
to discontinue the payment that
comes out on the 4th of every
month. Can you please help me
and stop the monthly payment for
the 4th of every month? I hope all
of this made sense. Thank you!
Hello! I have discontinued the
payment for you!
Thank you!
You are welcome! Your new
payment is set to recur.
Thank you for letting me know.
I must say, this might be my
favorite feature of the online
banking and app.
Great, I am glad you like what we
have added to assist our customers better. Have a great week!

Corporate Giving

Pictured below: (L-R): John Bowers, SVP/Regional Manager for the
Shenandoah Valley; Jonathan Comer, SVP/Commercial Loan Officer;
Jackie Kurtz, AVP/Lending; Keith Phillips, SVP/Agricultural Division
Manager; Mary Mannix, FACHE President & CEO, Augusta Health;
Bradley Dunsmore, VP/Commercial Loan Officer; Crystal Farmer, VP
of Nursing and Chief Nursing Officer, Augusta Health; Mark Dunsmore, SVP/Regional Operations Manager; and Shirley Carter, VP of
Philanthropy and Executive Director of the Augusta Health Foundation.

With the outstanding financial results achieved in the
past year, First Bank and Trust Company was able
to increase our level of support to those charitable
organizations we support in our market areas. In 2021,
First Bank and Trust Company provided approximately
$700,000 to worthy charitable organizations, with
the overwhelming majority of those funds aiding
organizations within our market footprint, directly
assisting the customers, employees and residents of
those communities we serve. The giving of the Bank is
strategically targeted to address the areas of greatest
need in our communities, focusing on education,
improving healthcare, relieving food insecurity, aiding
agricultural programs, and supporting long-term
economic development activities.
Support of organizations in excess of $20,000 each
included donations made to Emory & Henry College,
the Augusta Health Foundation, East Tennessee State
University, the Niswonger Children’s Hospital, the
Virginia Highlands Community College Foundation,
and various school Backpack Programs throughout
Southwest and Western Virginia. The Bank also
provided funds to communities impacted by natural
disasters, including the Hurley, Virginia floods of
August, 2021 and the December, 2021 Kentucky
tornado outbreak.
Not to be outdone, the employees of the First Bank
and Trust Company enthusiastically participated in
“Jean Days” throughout the year, making a donation
of $5 or more for the privilege of dressing in jeans on
Fridays. In total, employees donated over $22,000 in
2021, supporting over thirty-five various organizations.

Management
Associates
First Bank and Trust Company’s Management
Associate Program seeks to recruit and train highly
qualified individuals, many of who will ultimately
develop into future leaders of the Bank, thus ensuring
the long-term success of the organization. In 2021,
eight new management associates participated in the
program. These associates will spend up to two years
gaining experience in different areas of the Bank,
before being assigned to a specific role.
In addition to learning specific job functions and
processes, Management Associates gain an
understanding of the Bank’s values, culture and
vision, providing a solid base from which to grow
within the organization and contribute to the future
success of the Bank. The continued identification,
development and retention of young talent is crucial
to the Bank’s goal to remain a high-performing,
independent community bank with a focus on growth
and profitability.

“First Bank and Trust is a phenomenal place to work.
What differentiates this Bank is the culture, which is
second to none. Anyone who observes the people
within the Bank can see the dedication, great work
ethic, and team first attitude all employees possess.”
– David Cahill, Management Associate

“The Management Associate Program has given me
the opportunity to gain experience in several roles
throughout the Bank. This exposure will allow me to be
more versatile once I begin my permanent position.”
– Maranda Schill, Management Associate
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Young Bankers
The Young Bankers Management Team is comprised
of Bank Officers under the age of 35 that have
demonstrated the talent, drive and dedication to
become the future leaders of First Bank and Trust
Company. The Team currently has 36 members with
an average age of 29, from offices throughout Virginia,
Tennessee and North Carolina. It is the goal of the
Young Bankers Management Team to build and grow
relationships among peers across the entire Bank
footprint by facilitating conversations and initiatives
that allow for new and innovative ideas while at the
same time staying true to the core values of First Bank
and Trust Company.
As a way of fostering relationships among its
members, the Young Bankers Management Team is
involved in a variety of projects in their communities.
Although the ongoing pandemic reduced some
opportunities for service, the Young Bankers
Management Team proudly represented First Bank
and Trust Company by participating in multiple events

throughout 2021, including the Niswonger Children’s
Hospital Radiothon, a painting project at Mill Mountain
Zoo, repair work at the Paramount Center for the Arts
and collecting school supplies for a local “Stuff the
Bus” event. In addition, support was provided to the
Ronald McDonald house, Young Life, and various local
food banks.
Since the group’s inception, the Young Bankers
Management Team has proven to be a critical
component of the Bank’s overall succession plan.
Bonds forged within the group are invaluable as this
next generation of bankers navigate their early careers
together, building lifelong professional relationships
and trust, sharing knowledge, and gaining an
understanding of the Bank’s values and culture. The
experiences shared and camaraderie created in these
early stages of their professional careers will better
prepare these future leaders, ensuring the continued
success of the Bank for many years
to come.

“The Young Bankers Management Team has played an
important role in my career at First Bank and Trust. I’ve
built personal connections with colleagues, engaged
with and learned from our customers, and been able
to give back to the communities we serve. I am proud
to represent a company that truly believes in investing
in the future and growth of its associates.”
– Kevin Reeder, VP/Loan Officer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
First Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Lebanon, Virginia
Report on the Financial Statements and Internal Control
Opinions on the Financial Statements and Internal Control over Financial Reporting
We have audited the financial statements of First Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries (a Virginia corporation), which comprise the
consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive
income, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
First Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2021, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We also have audited First Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting, including controls over the
preparation of regulatory financial statements in accordance with the instructions for the Consolidated Financial Statements for Bank
Holding Companies (Form FR Y-9C), as of December 31, 2021. In our opinion, First Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries maintained, in all
material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2021, based on criteria established in the
2013 Internal Control- Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organization of the Treadway Commission
(the COSO Criteria).
Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAS). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audits of the Financial
Statements and Internal Control over Financial Reporting section of our report. We are required to be independent of First Bancorp,
Inc. and Subsidiaries and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to
our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements and Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of effective
internal control over financial reporting relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. Management is also responsible for its assessment about the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Report on Management’s Assessment of Internal Control over
Financial Reporting.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about First Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries’ ability to continue as a going concern over a one
year period from the report date.
MEMBERS
AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
WEST VIRGINIA SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audits of the Financial Statements and Internal Control over Financial Reporting
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained
in all material respects, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinions.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit of
financial statements or an audit of internal control over financial reporting conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a
material misstatement or a material weakness when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered to be material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in
the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.
In performing an audit of financial statements and an audit of internal control over financial reporting in accordance with GAAS, we:









Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the financial statement audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances.

Obtain an understanding of internal control over financial reporting relevant to the audit, assess the risks that a material
weakness exists, and test and evaluate the design and operating effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting
based on the assessed risk.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.
Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt
about First Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries’ ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that we identified during the financial statement
audit.
Definition and Inherent Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

An institution’s internal control over financial reporting is a process effected by those charged with governance, management, and
other personnel, designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the preparation of reliable financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Because management’s assessment and our audit were
conducted to meet the reporting requirements of Section 112 of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act
(FDICIA), our audit of First Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting included controls over the
preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and
with the instructions to the Consolidated Financial Statements for Bank Holding Companies (Form FR Y-9C). An institution’s internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the institution; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and that receipts and expenditures of the institution are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and those charged with governance; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention, or timely detection and correction of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the institution’s assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements.
Also, projections of any assessment of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Beckley, West Virginia
February 22, 2022
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Statement of Management’s Responsibilities
The management of First Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiary (The First
Bank and Trust Company) is responsible for preparing the
institution’s annual consolidated financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles; for designing,
implementing and maintaining an adequate internal control structure
and procedures for financial reporting, including controls over the
preparation of regulatory financial statements in accordance with the
instructions for the Consolidated Financial Statements for a Bank
Holding Company (FR Y-9C), Parent Company Only Financial
Statements for Large Bank Holding Companies (FR Y-9LP), and
Consolidated Reports of Condition and Income for a Bank with
Domestic Offices Only (FFIEC 041); and for complying with
Federal laws and regulations pertaining to insider loans and the
Federal and State laws and regulations pertaining to dividend
restrictions.

Management’s Assessment of Compliance with Designated
Laws and Regulations
The management of First Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiary has assessed
the Institution’s compliance with the Federal laws and regulations
pertaining to insider loans and the Federal and State laws and
regulations pertaining to dividend restrictions during the fiscal year
that ended on December 31, 2021. Based upon its assessment,
management has concluded that First Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiary
has complied with the Federal laws and regulations pertaining to
insider loans and the Federal and State laws and regulations
pertaining to dividend restrictions during the fiscal year that ended
on December 31, 2021.

Management’s Assessment of Internal Control over
Financial Reporting
First Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiary’s internal control over financial
reporting is a process effected by those charged with governance,
management, and other personnel, designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of reliable consolidated financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America and financial statements for regulatory
reporting purposes including Consolidated Financial Statements for
a Bank Holding Company (FR Y-9C), Parent Company Only
Financial Statements for Large Bank Holding Companies (FR Y9LP), and Consolidated Reports of Condition and Income for a Bank
with Domestic Offices Only (FFIEC 041). First Bancorp, Inc. and
Subsidiary’s internal control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of First Bancorp, Inc. and
Subsidiary; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America and financial
statements for regulatory reporting purposes, and that receipts and
expenditures of First Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiary are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors
of First Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiary; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention, or timely detection and correction
of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of First Bancorp,
Inc. and Subsidiary’s assets that could have a material effect on the
consolidated financial statements.

judgment and breakdowns resulting from human failures. Internal
control over financial reporting also can be circumvented by
collusion or improper management override.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal controls over financial
reporting may not prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods
are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.
Management assessed the effectiveness of First Bancorp, Inc. and
Subsidiary’s internal control over financial reporting, including
controls over the preparation of regulatory financial statements in
accordance with the instructions for the Consolidated Financial
Statements for a Bank Holding Company (FR Y-9C), Parent
Company Only Financial Statements for Large Bank Holding
Companies (FR Y-9LP), and Consolidated Reports of Condition and
Income for a Bank with Domestic Offices Only (FFIEC 041), as of
December 31, 2021, based on the framework set forth by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission in Internal Control – Integrated Framework.
Based upon its assessment, management has concluded that, as of
December 31, 2021, First Bancorp Inc. and Subsidiary’s internal
control over financial reporting, including controls over the
preparation of regulatory financial statements in accordance with the
instructions for the Consolidated Financial Statements for a Bank
Holding Company (FR Y-9C), Parent Company Only Financial
Statements for Large Bank Holding Companies (FR Y-9LP), and
Consolidated Reports of Condition and Income for a Bank with
Domestic Offices Only (FFIEC 041), is effective based on the
criteria established in Internal Control – Integrated Framework.
First Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiary’s control over financial reporting,
including controls over the preparation of regulatory financial
statements in accordance with the instructions for Consolidated
Financial Statements for a Bank Holding Company (FR Y-9C),
Parent Company Only Financial Statements for Large Bank Holding
Companies (FR Y-9LP), and Consolidated Reports of Condition and
Income for a Bank with Domestic Offices Only (FFIEC 041), as of
December 31, 2021, has been audited by Hess, Stewart & Campbell,
PLLC, an independent public accounting firm, as stated in their
report dated February 22, 2022.

First Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiary

W. Mark Nelson
President & Chief Executive Officer
February 22, 2022

A. Eric Moore
Chief Financial Officer
February 22, 2022

Internal control over financial reporting has inherent limitations.
Internal control over financial reporting is a process that involves
human diligence and compliance and is subject to lapses in
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FIRST BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2021 and 2020
2021

2020

ASSETS
Cash and due from banks
Interest-bearing due from banks
Federal funds sold

$

Total deposits

Short-term debt
Long-term debt
Accrued interest and other liabilities
TRUST PREFERRED SECURITIES

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Capital stock:
Common, no par value; authorized 20,000,000 shares;
Issued: 8,311,712 shares 2021 and 2020
Outstanding: 8,297,263 shares 2021 and 8,286,947 shares 2020
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Treasury stock, at cost:14,449 shares 2021 and 24,765 shares 2020
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13,843,473
3,634,073
6,382,200
17,687,219

2,067,359,600
46,531,108
45,844,700
1,546,334
8,725,899
1,002,216
17,069,974

1,921,992,414
44,521,870
43,983,546
7,042,906
9,019,800
1,002,216
16,224,314

$ 2,846,352,647

$ 2,344,110,489

$

$

720,358,792
1,763,505,739
2,483,864,531
‐
75,791,499
15,584,654
91,376,153
9,500,000

10,524,640
248,040
251,773,844
(637,301)
(297,260)
261,611,963
$ 2,846,352,647

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

17,049,742
241,726,716
258,776,458

93,262,900
3,146,586
4,710,200
10,793,613

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Deposits:
Noninterest-bearing
Interest-bearing

$

546,359,517

Cash and cash equivalents

Securities available-for-sale, at fair value
Securities held-to-maturity
Restricted equity securities
Loans held for sale
Loans, net of allowance of $28,968,172 and $25,000,100
in 2021 and 2020, respectively
Bank premises and equipment, net
Bank owned life insurance
Foreclosed assets
Accrued interest receivable
Goodwill
Other assets

21,310,221
525,049,296
‐

574,966,286
1,413,650,184
1,988,616,470

‐
97,909,914
13,055,212

110,965,126

9,500,000

10,524,640
248,040
224,896,545
162,006
(802,338)

235,028,893

$ 2,344,110,489

FIRST BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
2021
Interest and Dividend Income:
Interest and fees on loans
Investment securities:
Taxable
Tax-exempt
Interest on interest-bearing funds
Other interest and dividends

$

Noninterest Expenses:
Salaries and employee benefits
Occupancy and equipment
Loss on impaired investments, other
Loss (Gain) on sale of foreclosed properties
Other operating expenses

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

7,312,548

90,317,476

72,142,345

1,724,164
2,621,897
9,952,230
5,738,228
‐
1,746,426
21,782,945

1,243,340
2,683,859
8,244,508
7,499,700
(29,059)
1,018,133
20,660,481

34,664,777
5,395,696
‐
(4,830)
18,451,484
58,507,127

Income before income taxes

256,558
250,543
747,978
353,152
90,862,994

79,454,893

4,212,106

Noninterest Income:
Trust department fees
Service charges on deposit accounts
Other service charges, commissions and fees
Gain on sale of loans
Realized gains (losses) on securities available-for-sale
Other

89,254,763

8,693,904
2
2,714,195
11,408,101

94,529,582

Provision for Loan Losses:
Net interest income after provision for
loan losses

Earnings per common share

$

6,767,190
2
2,159,124
8,926,316

Net interest income

Net Income

102,270,743
350,061
110,657
493,424
231,013
103,455,898

Interest Expense:
Interest on deposits
Interest on short-term debt
Interest on long-term debt

Income Taxes
Income taxes

2020

32,340,225
4,384,577
765,664
63,638
15,132,725
52,686,829

53,593,294

40,115,997

11,457,891

7,958,959

$

42,135,403

$

5.08

$

$

32,157,038

3.88
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FIRST BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
2021
Net income

$

Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Unrealized gains on securities:
Unrealized gains ( losses) arising during period
Reclassification adjustment for (gains) losses in net income
Income tax effect
Other comprehensive (loss) gain

Comprehensive income

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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42,135,403

$

(1,011,781)
‐
212,474

41,336,096

32,157,038
373,055
29,059
(107,401)

(799,307)
$

2020

$

294,713

32,451,751

FIRST BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
Additional
Paid‐In
Capital

Common
Stock
Balance, December 31, 2019
Comprehensive income:

$

10,524,640

Net income

$

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Income

Retained
Earnings

248,040

$

205,178,381

-

-

32,157,038

Sale of treasury stock (18,933 shares)

‐

-

-

Cash dividends paid ($1.50 per share)

-

Other comprehensive income

-

‐

Purchase of treasury stock (23,552 shares)
Balance, December 31, 2020
Comprehensive income:

-

-

-

32,157,038

-

1,253,411

1,253,411

-

294,713

-

-

(1,739,520)
(802,338)

(12,438,874)

215,502,125

-

-

294,713

(1,739,520)

-

(12,438,874)

224,896,545

162,006

-

-

42,135,403

-

-

42,135,403

-

-

-

-

1,365,078

1,365,078

-

-

-

Sale of treasury stock (21,066 shares)

-

‐

Purchase of treasury Stock (10,750 shares)
$

(316,229) $

248,040

Other comprehensive loss

Balance, December 31, 2021

-

(132,707) $

Total

10,524,640

Net income

Cash dividends paid ($1.84 per share)

-

$

Treasury
Stock

-

10,524,640

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

-

-

$

-

248,040

(799,307)

-

$

(15,258,104)

251,773,844

-

$

(637,301) $

235,028,893

-

(799,307)

(860,000)

(860,000)

(15,258,104)

(297,260) $

261,611,963
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FIRST BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
2021
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization of premises and equipment
Amortization of intangibles
Mortgage servicing rights amortization and
capitalization, net
Provision for loan losses
Change in fair value of servicing rights, net
Net amortization of securities
Realized loss on available-for-sale securities, net
Loans originated for sale
Proceeds from sale of loans
Gain on sale of loans
Loss on sale of property and equipment
(Gain) loss on sale of foreclosed property
Writedowns on foreclosed assets
Writedowns on other impaired investments
Deferred income tax benefit
Increase in bank owned life insurance
Decrease (Increase) in loans held for sale
Decrease (Increase) in accrued interest receivable
Increase in other assets
Increase in accrued interest and other liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Activity in available-for-sale securities
Maturities, repayments and calls
Purchases
Activity in held-to-maturity securities
Maturities, repayments and calls
Increase in customer loans
Additions to premises and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Proceeds from sale of foreclosed assets
Additions to foreclosed assets
Restricted equity transactions, net
Net cash used in investing activities

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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$

42,135,403
2,681,685
7,050
106,457
4,212,106
(598,845)
108,784
‐
(197,552,589)
202,123,369
(5,738,228)
18,059
(4,830)
339,559
‐
57,855
(1,861,154)
6,893,606
293,901
(611,509)
2,529,442
55,140,121

15,322,858
(95,862,850)
487,487
(148,842,478)
(4,716,296)
413,110
5,592,487
‐
1,672,000
(225,933,682)

2020
$

32,157,038
2,154,222
7,050

(1,272,838)
7,312,548
906,694
144,118
29,059
(286,112,963)
278,164,471
(7,499,700)
63,638
786,597
765,664
(1,776,334)
(5,953,765)
(7,948,492)
(1,367,422)
(1,471,085)
4,702,020
13,790,520

7,950,576
(563,828)

6,916,673
(347,945,734)
(11,712,008)
1,168,976
(47,776)
(191,500)
(344,424,621)

FIRST BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
2021
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net increase in non-interest bearing deposits
Net increase in interest-bearing deposits
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt
Repayment of long-term debt
Cash dividends paid
Sale of treasury stock
Purchase of treasury stock
`

145,392,506
349,855,555
‐
(22,118,415)
(15,258,104)
1,365,078
(860,000)

SUPPLEMENTARY CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Interest paid on deposits and borrowed funds
Income taxes paid
Transfer of loans to foreclosed assets

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

358,427,892

287,583,059

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Ending

199,672,036
171,171,934
18,394,465
(17,885,560)
(12,438,874)
1,253,411
(1,739,520)

458,376,620

Net cash provided by financing activities

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Beginning

2020

27,793,791

258,776,458
$

546,359,517

$

$

9,110,307
9,710,157

$

430,634

230,982,667
258,776,458

11,679,315
9,583,200
620,000
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1. NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The Company is a bank holding company headquartered in Lebanon, Virginia. The Company, through its
banking subsidiary’s twenty-five branches, grants agribusiness, commercial, residential and installment loans
to its customers. Primary deposit products are non-interest bearing checking accounts, savings and term
certificate of deposits. The Company currently operates in the states of Virginia, Tennessee, and North Carolina.

The accounting and reporting policies and practices of the Company conform to accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. The following is a summary of the Company’s significant accounting
policies.

Principles of Consolidation: The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of First Bancorp, Inc.,
(Company or Parent) and its wholly owned subsidiaries: The First Bank & Trust Company (Bank) and First
Southeast Development LLC. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation. The Company consolidates subsidiaries in which it holds, directly or indirectly, more than 50%
of the voting rights or where it has the ability to exercise control. The Bank operates under a state charter and
is subject to regulation by the Virginia Bureau of Financial Institutions and the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation. The Parent is subject to regulation by the Federal Reserve.

Use of Estimates: In preparing consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP), management is required to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of the balance sheet date as well as
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
estimates.

The determination of the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses is based on estimates that are particularly
susceptible to significant changes in the economic environment and market conditions. In connection with the
determination of the estimated losses on loans, management obtains independent appraisals for significant
collateral.

The Bank’s loans are generally secured by specific items of collateral including real property, consumer assets,
and business assets. Although the Bank has a diversified loan portfolio, a substantial portion of its debtors’ ability
to honor their contracts is dependent on local economic conditions. While management uses available
information to recognize losses on loans, further reductions in the carrying amounts of loans may be necessary
based on changes in local economic conditions. In addition, regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their
examination process, periodically review the estimated losses on loans. Such agencies may require the Bank to
recognize additional losses based on judgments drawn from available information at the time of the examination.
Due to the influence of factors described, it is reasonably possible that the estimated losses on loans are
susceptible to change in the near term. However, the amount of the change that is reasonably possible cannot be
estimated.
Reclassifications: Certain amounts in the financial statements have been reclassified. Such reclassifications had
no impact on shareholders’ equity or net income for any period.

Cash and Cash Equivalents: For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash, due
from banks, federal funds sold, interest-bearing deposits, and cash items in process of clearing. The Company
maintains amounts due from banks which, at times, may exceed federally insured limits. The Company has not
experienced any losses in such accounts.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1. NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
Significant Group Concentration of Credit Risk: Most of the Company’s activities are with customers within
Russell, Washington, Augusta, Rockingham, Wise, Wythe and Montgomery Counties in Virginia and Washington,
and Sullivan Counties in Tennessee. Note 4 discusses the types of investment securities that the Company invests
in. Note 5 discusses the types of lending that the Company engages in. The Company does not have any significant
concentrations to any one industry or customer.

Trust Assets: Assets of the trust department, other than cash on deposit at the subsidiary bank, are not included
in these financial statements because they are not assets of the Company. Managed assets as of December 31,
2021 totaled $235,202,992.

Securities: Management determines the appropriate classification of securities at the time of purchase. Securities
available-for-sale are those debt securities that the Company intends to hold for an indefinite period of time, but
not necessarily to maturity. Any decision to sell a security classified as available-for-sale would be based on
various factors, including significant movements in interest rates, changes in the maturity mix of the Company’s
assets and liabilities, liquidity needs, regulatory capital considerations, and other similar factors. Securities
available-for-sale are carried at fair value. Unrealized gains or losses are reported in comprehensive income.
Securities classified as held-to-maturity are those debt securities that the Company has both the intent and ability
to hold to maturity regardless of changes in market conditions, liquidity needs or general economic conditions
and are carried at amortized cost. Purchase premiums and discounts are recognized in interest income using the
interest method over the terms of the securities. Realized gains (losses) on securities available-for-sale are
included in other income (expense) and, when applicable, are reported as a reclassification adjustment, net of tax,
in other comprehensive income. Gains and losses on the sale of securities are recorded on the trade date and are
determined using the specific identification method.

The Company evaluates each held-to-maturity and available-for-sale security in a loss position for other-thantemporary impairment (OTTI). In estimating other-than-temporary impairment losses, management considers
such factors as the length of time and the extent to which the market value has been below cost, the financial
condition of the issuer and the Company’s intent to sell and whether it is more likely than not that the Company
will be required to sell the security before anticipated recovery of the amortized cost basis. If the Company
intends to sell or if it is more likely than not that the Company will be required to sell the security before recovery,
the OTTI write-down is recognized in earnings. If the Company does not intend to sell the security or it is not
likely it will be required to sell the security before recovery, the OTTI write-down is separated into an amount
representing credit loss, which is recognized in earnings, and an amount related to all other factors, which is
recognized in other comprehensive income (loss).
Restricted Equity Securities: The Company owns investments in the stock of the Federal Reserve Bank (FRB)
and the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta (FHLB). No ready market exists for these stocks and they have no
quoted market value. FRB stock is redeemable at par, therefore, market value equals cost. The Bank, as a member
of the FHLB, is required to maintain an investment in the capital stock of the FHLB. The stock is redeemable at
par by the FHLB, and is therefore carried at cost and periodically evaluated for impairment. The Company’s ability
to redeem the shares owned is dependent on the redemption practices of the FHLB. The Company records
dividends in income on the ex-dividend date.
Loans Held for Sale: Loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market are carried at cost. Due to
the short time existing between processing and sale, no valuation account is established.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1. NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
Loans: Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or
pay-off generally are stated at their outstanding unpaid principal balances adjusted for unearned income and the
allowance for possible loan losses. Loan commitment fees and certain direct loan costs are not deferred as they
represent an insignificant item.
For loans, interest is accrued daily on the outstanding balance. The methods collectively produce a result that is
not materially different from the level yield method. The accrual of interest on mortgage and commercial loans is
discontinued at the time the loan is 90 days past due unless the credit is well-secured and in process of collection.
Past due status is based on contractual terms of the loan. In all cases, loans are placed on nonaccrual or chargedoff at an earlier date if collection of principal or interest is considered doubtful.

All interest accrued but not collected for loans that are placed on nonaccrual or charged off is reversed against
interest income. The interest on these loans is accounted for on the cash basis or cost recovery method, until
qualifying for return to accrual. Loans are returned to accrual status when all the principal and interest amounts
contractually due are brought current and future payments are reasonably assured.

Allowance for Loan Losses: The allowance for loan losses is established as losses estimated to have occurred
through a provision for loan losses charged to earnings. Loan losses are charged against the allowance when
management believes the uncollectibility of a loan balance is confirmed. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are
credited to the allowance.

The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on a quarterly basis by management and is based upon management’s
periodic review of the collectability of the loans in light of historical experience, the nature and volume of the loan
portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the borrower’s ability to repay, estimated value of any underlying
collateral and prevailing economic conditions. This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires estimates
that are susceptible to significant revision as more information becomes available.

The allowance consists of allocated and general components. The allocated component relates to loans that are
classified as impaired. For those loans that are classified as impaired, an allowance is established when the
discounted cash flows (or collateral value or observable market price) of the impaired loan is lower than the
carrying value of that loan. The general component covers classified and non-classified loans based on historical
charge-off experience and expected loss given default derived from the Company’s internal risk rating process.
Other adjustments may be made to the allowance for pools of loans after an assessment of internal or external
influences on credit quality that are not fully reflected in the historical loss or risk rating data.

Impaired Loans: Identified loans where a portion of the outstanding principal and interest is at risk of collection
based on the current market value of the collateral securing the credit are considered impaired. Management
determines the significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into
consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and borrower, including the length of the delay, the
reasons for the delay, the borrower’s prior payment record, and the amount of the shortfall in relation to the
principal and interest owed. Impairment is measured on a loan by loan basis for commercial and construction
loans by either the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate, the
loan’s obtainable market price, or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1. NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
Large groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans are collectively evaluated for impairment. Accordingly, the
Company does not separately identify individual consumer and residential loans for impairment disclosures,
unless such loans are the subject of a restructuring agreement due to financial difficulties of the borrower.

Troubled Debt Restructurings: In situations where, for economic or legal reasons related to a debtor’s financial
difficulties, the Bank grants a concession for other than an insignificant period of time to the debtor that the Bank
would not otherwise consider, the related loan is classified as a troubled debt restructuring (TDR). The Bank
strives to identify debtors in financial difficulty early and work with them to modify to more affordable terms
before their loan reaches nonaccrual status. These modified terms may include rate reductions, principal
forgiveness, payment forbearance and other actions intended to minimize the economic loss and to avoid
foreclosure or repossession of the collateral. In cases where the Bank grants the debtor new terms that provide
for a reduction of either interest or principal, the Bank measures any impairment on the restructuring as
previously noted for impaired loans.

Servicing: Servicing assets are recognized as separate assets when rights are acquired through the sale or
through the purchase of financial assets. Generally, purchased servicing rights are capitalized at the cost to
acquire the rights. For sales of mortgage loans, the fair value of the servicing right is allocated based on relative
fair value. Fair value is based on a valuation model that calculates the present value of estimated future net
servicing income. The valuation model incorporates assumptions that market participants would use in
estimating future net servicing income, such as the cost to service, the discount rate, the custodial earnings rate,
an inflation rate, ancillary income, prepayment speeds and default rates and losses.

Servicing assets are evaluated for impairment based on the fair value of the rights compared to amortized cost.
Impairment is determined by stratifying rights based on final maturity dates, to the extent that the fair value is
less than the capitalized amount for each maturity date tranche. If the Company later determines that all or a
portion of the impairment no longer exists, a reduction of the allowance may be recorded as an increase to income.
Capitalized servicing rights are reported in other assets and are amortized into noninterest income in proportion
to, and over the period of, the estimated future net servicing income of the underlying financial assets.

Bank Premises and Equipment: Land is carried at cost. Other bank premises and equipment are carried at cost
less accumulated depreciation and amortization computed on the straight-line method over the estimated useful
lives of the assets as follows:
Building and improvements
Furniture and equipment

Years
10-40
3-10

Costs of ordinary maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred while major improvements are
capitalized. Gains and losses on dispositions are included in current operations.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1. NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
Foreclosed Assets: Foreclosed assets represent properties acquired through foreclosure or other proceedings.
Foreclosed assets are held- for-sale and are recorded at the lower of the recorded amount of the loan or fair value
of the properties less estimated costs of disposal. Any write-down to fair value at the time of transfer to foreclosed
assets is charged to the allowance for possible loan losses. Property is evaluated regularly to ensure the recorded
amount is supported by its current fair value and valuation allowances to reduce the carrying amount to fair value
less estimated costs to dispose, are recorded as necessary. Depreciation is recorded based on the recorded
amount of depreciable assets after they have been owned for one year. Depreciation and additions to or
reductions from valuation allowances are recorded in income.

Intangible Assets: Goodwill of $1,002,216 is reviewed annually for impairment in accordance with GAAP.
Management has determined under this evaluation that no impairment to goodwill has occurred during 2021.
Included in other assets are other net intangible assets of $98,700 and $105,750 at December 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively. Other intangible assets consist of organizational costs. Organizational costs of $282,000 are being
amortized over a forty-year period.

Income Taxes: Deferred taxes are provided on a liability method where deferred tax assets are recognized for
deductible temporary differences and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards and deferred tax liabilities are
recognized for taxable temporary differences. Temporary differences are the differences between the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance
when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets
will not be realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted for the effects of changes in tax laws and rates
on the date of enactment. The operating results of the Parent Company and its Subsidiary are included in a
consolidated federal income tax return. The Subsidiary pays its allocation of federal income taxes to the Parent
Company or receives payment from the Parent Company to the extent that tax benefits are realized.
Treasury Stock: Common stock shares repurchased are recorded as treasury stock at cost.

Earnings Per Share: Earnings per share are computed on the weighted average number of shares outstanding.

Comprehensive Income: Comprehensive income consists of net income and other comprehensive income.
Other comprehensive income includes unrealized gains on securities available-for-sale, and unrealized losses
related to factors other than credit on debt securities available-for-sale.

Fair Value of Instruments: Fair values of financial instruments are estimated using relevant market information
and other assumptions, as more fully disclosed in Note 2. Fair value estimates involve uncertainties and matters
of judgment. Changes in assumptions or in market conditions could significantly affect the estimates.
Retirement Plan: The Company funds retirement costs as incurred.

Advertising Costs: Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising expense totaled $818,965 and
$671,291 for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
Accrued Compensated Absences: Due to the timing of payment and restrictions on absence usage, the
Company has determined that accruals for compensated absences are not material.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1. NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
Subsequent Events: The Company has evaluated the accompanying consolidated financial statements for
subsequent events and transactions through February 22, 2022, the date these financial statements were
available for issue, based on FASB ASC 855, Subsequent Events, and have determined that no material
subsequent events have occurred that would affect the information presented in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements or require additional disclosure.

Covid19 continues to create disruptions in the local, national and global markets and communities. Vaccine
programs are beginning to be implemented at this time. However, if effects continue for a prolonged period or
result in sustained economic stress or recession, the effects could have a material adverse impact on the
Company in a number of ways related to credit, collateral, customer demand, funding, operations, inherent rate
risk, human capital and self-insurance, as well as related risk associated with critical accounting estimates such
as the allowance for credit losses or valuation impairments.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements: The following is a summary of recent authoritative pronouncements
that could impact the accounting, reporting and/or disclosure of financial information by the Company.

In January 2021, The FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2021-01, Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848). The
amendments in this Update clarify that certain optional expedients and exceptions in Topic 848 for contract
modifications and hedge accounting apply to derivatives that are affected by the discounting transition.
Specifically, certain provisions in Topic 48, if elected by an entity, apply to derivative instruments that use an
interest rate for margining, discounting, or contract price alignment that is modified as a result of reference
rate reform. Amendments in this Update to the expedients and exceptions in Topic 848 capture the incremental
consequences of the scope clarification and tailor the existing guidance to derivative instruments affected by
the discounting transition.

In November 2021, The FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2021-09, Leases (Topic 842). As part of the
Board's post-implementation review of Topic 842, the Board and staff continue to assist stakeholders by
responding to inquiries received and proactively seeking feedback on potential implementation issues that
have arisen as public business entities began implementing Topic 842. Since the issuance of Update 2016-02,
the Board has issued six Updates to assist stakeholders with implementation issues and two Updates deferring
the effective date for private companies and certain not-for-profit organizations. The Board also has created a
dedicated section on its website for post-implementation review. The staff continues to perform outreach with
stakeholders to determine whether the standard is accomplishing its stated objective and to evaluate the
implementation and continuing compliance costs and benefits related to Topic 842.
Other accounting standards that have been issued or proposed by the FASB or other standards-setting bodies
are not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial position, results of operations or cash
flows.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 2. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Company uses fair value measurements to record fair value adjustments to certain assets and liabilities and
to determine fair value disclosures. In accordance with the Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures topic of
FASB ASC, the fair value of a financial instrument is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value is
best determined upon quoted market prices. However, in many instances, there are no quoted market prices for
the Company’s various financial instruments. Under GAAP, the Company groups assets and liabilities at fair value
in three levels, based on the markets in which the assets and liabilities are traded and the reliability of the
assumptions used to determine the fair value. These levels are:
Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Valuation is based upon quoted prices in active markets for identical instruments
that the entity has the ability to access at the measurement date. Level 1 assets and
liabilities generally include debt and equity securities that are traded on the active
exchange market. Valuations are obtained from readily available pricing sources for
market transactions involving identical assets or liabilities.

Valuation is based upon inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. The valuation
may be based on quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in
markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be
corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the asset
or liability.

Valuation is based on unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market
activity and that are significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities. Level 3
assets and liabilities include financial instruments whose value is determined using
pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologies, or similar techniques, as well
as instruments for which determination of fair value requires significant
management judgment or estimation.

A financial instrument’s categorization within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurement. The following methods and assumptions were used by the Company in
estimating fair value disclosures for financial instruments.

Cash and Short‐term Investments: The carrying amount of cash and short-term instruments approximate fair
values.

Securities: Prices for these securities are obtained through third party data service providers or dealer market
participants with which the Company has historically transacted both purchases and sales of investment
securities. Benchmarks and other comparable securities are also used in estimating the values of these
investment securities. Securities available-for-sale are recorded at fair value on a recurring basis.
Loan Receivables: The fair value of loans is estimated by discounting the future cash flows using the current
rates at which similar loans would be made to borrowers with similar credit ratings and for the same remaining
maturities.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 2. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, continued
Mortgage Servicing Rights: Fair value is based on market prices for comparable mortgage servicing contracts,
when available, or alternatively, is based on a valuation model that calculates the present value of estimated future
net servicing income.
Deposit Liabilities: The fair value of demand deposits, savings accounts, and certain money market deposits is
the amount payable on demand at the reporting date. The fair value of fixed-maturity certificates of deposit is
estimated using the rates currently offered for deposits of similar remaining maturities.
Short‐term Debt: The fair value of debt due on demand or with a maturity of three months or less is the amount
payable on demand at the reporting date.
Long‐term Debt: Rates currently available to the Company for debt with similar terms and remaining maturities
are used to estimate fair value of existing debt.
Accrued Interest: The carrying amounts of accrued interest approximate fair value.

Commitment to Extend Credit, Standby Letters of Credit, and Financial Guarantees Written: The fair value
of standby letters of credit, unused commercial line commitments, revolving home equity lines, credit card lines
and other lines of commitments are based on the Company’s prime rate, which is the same rate used when the
aforementioned off-balance sheet items become recognized.
Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis and non-recurring basis are summarized below:

Total
December 31, 2021:
Recurring basis:

Securities available-for-sale:
U.S. Government agencies
$
State and political subdivisions
Mortgage-backed securities
Other debt securities
Loans held for sale
Mortgage servicing rights
Non-recurring basis:
Impaired loans, with allowance
Foreclosed assets

Quoted Prices
Active Markets
for
Identical Assets
(Level 1)

83,753,221 $
544,442
6,778,926
186,311
10,793,613
5,506,469
‐
1,546,334
$

109,109,316 $

‐ $
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐ $

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

83,753,221
544,442
6,778,926
186,311
10,793,613
‐

$

‐
‐
102,056,513 $

‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
5,506,469
‐
1,546,334
7,052,803
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 2. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, continued
December 31, 2020:
Recurring basis:
Securities available-for-sale:
U.S. Government agencies
State and political subdivisions
Mortgage-backed securities
Other debt securities
Loans held for sale
Mortgage servicing rights
Non-recurring basis:
Impaired loans, with allowance
Foreclosed assets

$

$

1,926,768 $
1,631,543
10,252,539
32,623
17,687,219
4,514,081

- $
-

1,926,768 $
1,631,543
10,252,539
32,623
17,687,219
-

43,641,477

- $

31,530,692 $

553,798
7,042,906

$

-

-

4,514,081

553,798
7,042,906

12,110,785

The estimated fair values in thousands of dollars of the Company’s financial instruments at December 31, 2021
and 2020 are as follows:
December 31, 2021
December 31, 2020
Carrying
Fair
Carrying
Fair
Amount
Value
Amount
Value
Financial Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
$
546,360
$
546,360
$
258,776
$
258,776
Securities available-for-sale
93,263
93,263
13,843
13,843
Securities held-to-maturity
3,146
3,146
3,634
3,634
Other investments--stock
4,710
4,710
6,382
6,382
Loans held for sale
10,794
10,794
17,687
17,687
Loans
2,096,328
2,092,852
1,946,993
1,952,384
Less: Allowance for possible
loan losses
28,968
28,968
25,000
25,000
Net loans
2,078,154
2,074,678
1,939,680
1,945,071
Mortgage servicing rights
5,506
5,506
4,514
4,514
Bank owned life insurance
45,845
45,845
43,984
43,984
Accrued interest receivable
8,726
8,726
9,020
9,020
Financial Liabilities:
Deposits
Short-term debt
Long-term debt
Accrued interest payable
Trust Preferred Securities

Unrecognized Instruments
Standby letters of credit
Unused loan commitments
Revolving home equity lines
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2,483,864
‐
75,791
396

2,248,193
‐
76,542
396

1,988,616
‐
97,910
529

1,860,559
‐
101,005
529

9,500

10,528

9,500

9,529

20,888
596,416
15,555

17,124
476,983
19,088

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 3. RESTRICTIONS ON CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS
The company does not have any restrictions on cash with the Federal Reserve or any correspondent banks

NOTE 4. SECURITIES

The amortized cost and estimated fair values of debt securities with unrealized gains and losses as of December
31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:
Estimated
Gross
Gross
Fair
Unrealized
Unrealized
Amortized
Value
Losses
Gains
Cost
2021:
Securities available-for-sale:
U.S. Government agencies
and corporations
State and political subdivisions
Mortgage-backed securities
Other debt securities
Securities held-to-maturity
State and political subdivisions

$

86,669,441 $
544,186
6,721,559
134,424
94,069,610
3,146,586

77,038 $
256
80,273
51,887
209,454

993,258 $
‐
22,906
‐
1,016,164

3,933

$

97,216,196 $

213,387 $

$

1,932,539 $
1,619,656
10,078,095
8,112
13,638,402

‐ $
11,887
194,545
24,510
230,942

‐

85,753,221
544,442
6,778,926
186,311
93,262,900
3,150,519

1,016,164 $

96,413,419

5,770 $
‐
20,101
‐
25,871

1,926,769
1,631,543
10,252,539
32,622
13,843,473

600

3,633,473

26,471

17,476,946

2020:

Securities available-for-sale:
U.S. Government agencies
and corporations
State and political subdivisions
Mortgage-backed securities
Other debt securities

Securities held-to-maturity
State and political subdivisions

3,634,073
$

17,272,475 $

‐
230,942 $

The amortized cost and fair value of debt securities by contractual maturity as of December 31, 2021 are shown
below. Maturities may differ from contractual maturities in mortgage-backed securities because the mortgages
underlying the securities may be called or repaid without penalties.
Amortized
Fair
Cost
Value
Due in one year or less
Due after one year through five years
Due after five years through ten years
Due after ten years

$

351,625 $
55,704,280
35,992,838
5,167,453

410,591
55,212,375
35,601,286
5,189,167

$ 97,216,196 $

96,413,419
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 4. SECURITIES, continued
Securities with carrying values of $91,278,740 and $12,179,307 at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively,
were pledged as collateral on public deposits, repurchase agreements, and for other purposes as permitted by
law. Gross realized gains for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 totaled $0 and $0, respectively. Gross
realized losses for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 totaled -0- and $29,059 respectively.

The following table shows the unrealized losses and fair value of the entity’s investments with unrealized losses
that are not deemed to be other-than-temporarily impaired, aggregated by investment category and the length of
time that individual securities have been in a continuous loss position at December 31, 2021 and 2020:
Less Than Twelve Months

Estimated
Fair Value

Over Twelve Months

Unrealized
Losses

Estimated
Fair Value

Total

Unrealized
Losses

Estimated
Fair Value

Unrealized
Losses

‐

$73,960,504

$

2021:
Available-forSale
U.S Agencies
Mortgagebacked
Municipals
Held-toMaturity
Municipals
Total

$73,960,504

$

993,258

$

‐

$

993,258

1,564,401
‐

14,834
‐

763,989
‐

8,072
‐

2,328,390
‐

22,906

75,524,905

1,008,092

763,989

8,072

76,288,894

1,016,164

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

$75,524,905

$ 1,008,092

8,072

$ 76,288,894

$ 1,016,164

$

Less Than Twelve Months
Estimated
Fair Value

763,989

$

Over Twelve Months

Unrealized
Losses

Estimated
Fair Value

$

$

Total

Unrealized
Losses

Estimated
Fair Value

Unrealized
Losses

2020:
Available-forSale
U.S Agencies
Mortgagebacked
Municipals
Held-toMaturity
Municipals
Total

$ 1,926,769

5,770

‐

$

‐

$1,926,769

$

5,770

399,818
‐

1,087
‐

1,199,293
‐

19,014
‐

1,599,111
‐

20,101

2,326,587

6,857

1,199,293

19,014

3,525,880

25,871

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

6,857

$ 1,199,293

19,014

$ 3,525,880

$ 2,326,587

$

$

$

25,871

Management evaluates securities for other-than-temporary impairment at least on a quarterly basis, and more
frequently when economic or market concerns warrant such evaluation. Consideration is given to (1) the length
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 4. SECURITIES, continued
of time and the extent to which fair value has been less than cost, (2) the financial condition and near-term
prospects of the issuer, and (3) the intent and ability of the Company to retain its investment in the issuer for a
period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value. At December 31, 2021, 51 debt
securities with fair values of $76,288,894 and total unrealized losses of $1,016,221 had depreciated 1.33% from
the Company’s amortized cost basis. At December 31, 2020, fifteen debt securities with fair values of $3,525,879
and total unrealized losses of $25,872 had depreciated 0.7% from the Company’s amortized cost basis. These
securities are guaranteed by either the U.S. Government or other governments. These unrealized losses relate
principally to current interest rates for similar types of securities. In analyzing an issuer’s financial condition,
management considers whether the securities are issued by the federal government or its agencies, whether the
downgrades by bond rating agencies have occurred, and the results of reviews of the issuer’s financial condition.
As management has the ability to hold debt securities until maturity, or for the foreseeable future if classified as
available-for-sale, no declines are deemed to be other-than-temporary.
Restricted equity securities consists of Federal Home Loan Bank Stock and Federal Reserve Stock. At December
31, 2021 and 2020 FHLB Stock totaled $4,105,900 and $5,777,900, respectively. At December 31, 2021 and 2020,
Federal Reserve Stock totaled $604,300 for both years.

NOTE 5. LOANS

The following table presents the composition of loans, segregated by class of loans, as of December 31:
2021
2020
Commercial
$ 221,408,794 $ 314,014,456
Commercial real estate
585,208,513
519,796,076
Construction and land development
234,650,014
176,106,789
Agriculture
571,777,766
488,922,665
Residential real estate
371,735,924
357,521,616
Consumer
27,999,836
19,785,556
Other
94,340,538
88,532,575
2,107,121,385
1,964,679,733
Less allowance
(28,968,172)
(25,000,100)
$ 2,078,153,213 $ 1,939,679,633
Overdraft deposit accounts that have been reclassified as loans as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 totaled
$682,353 and $228,885, respectively.
As a part of the ongoing monitoring of the credit quality of the loan portfolio, management tracks certain credit
quality indicators including trends related to (i) the risk grade assigned to commercial and consumer loans, (ii)
the level of classified commercial and consumer loans, (iii) net charge-offs, (iv) nonperforming loans, and (v)
the general economic conditions in the Company’s geographic region. The Company uses a risk grading system
to assign a risk grade to each of its loans. Loans are graded on a scale of 0-9. The Company risk rates one
hundred percent of the loans in its portfolio. The bank uses the following definitions for risk ratings:

Pass (0-5) – Loans and leases classified as pass should be performing relatively close to expectations, with
adequate evidence that the borrower is continuing to generate adequate cash flow to service debt. There
should be no significant departure from the intended source and timing of repayment, and there should be no
undue reliance on secondary sources of repayment. To the extent that some variance exists in one or more
criteria being measured, it may be offset by the relative strength of other factors and/or collateral pledged to
secure the transaction.
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NOTE 5. LOANS, continued
Special Mention (6) – Has potential weaknesses that deserve management’s close attention. If left uncorrected,
these potential weaknesses may result in deterioration of the repayment prospects for the asset in the
institution’s credit position at some future date. Special mention assets are not adversely classified and do not
expose the institution to sufficient risk to warrant an adverse classification.

Substandard (7) – Inadequately protected by the current worth and paying capacity of the obligor or the
collateral pledged, if any. Assets so classified have a well-defined weakness that jeopardizes the liquidation of
the debt. They are characterized by the distinct possibility that the institution will sustain some loss if the
deficiencies are not corrected. Also, this risk rating may apply to non-accrual loans and other real estate owned.
The loans require immediate attention and formal reporting to management on a quarterly basis.

Doubtful (8) – Has all the weaknesses inherent in one classified substandard with the added characteristic that
the weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full, on the basis of currently existing facts, conditions, and
values, highly questionable and improbable. Loans in this category must be placed on non-accrual and all
payments (principal and interest) applied to principal recapture. The key issue that makes a loan Doubtful is
the potential for loss. The probability of some loss is extremely high, but because of certain important and
reasonable specific pending factors, the amount of loss cannot yet be determined. Therefore, every effort is
made to confirm specific collateral values or other protections against loss in order to minimize the portion of
the loan rated Doubtful. All or portions of Doubtful rated loans may be recommended for charge-off. All
Doubtful loans must be on non-accrual; however, all non-accrual loans are not necessarily rated Doubtful.

Loss (9) – This loan is classified as a loss and is considered not collectible. It is of such little value that
continuance as a bankable asset is not warranted. This classification does not mean that the loan has absolutely
no recovery or salvage value, but rather it is not practical or desirable to deter writing off this basically
worthless loan even though partial recovery may be affected in the future. Amounts so determined must be
charged-off in accordance with established procedures. The Company did not have any loans classified as Loss
at December 31, 2021 and 2020.

The following table presents the loan portfolio by credit quality indicator (risk grade) as of December 31, 2021
and 2020. Those loans with a risk grade of 0, 1, 2, 3, 4 or 5 have been combined in the pass column for
presentation purposes.
Special
Sub‐
Total
December 31, 2021
Pass
Mention Standard Doubtful
Loans
Commercial
Commercial real estate
Construction and land development
Agriculture
Residential real estate
Consumer
Other
Total loans
Percentage to total loans

December 31, 2020
Commercial
Commercial real estate
Construction and land development
Agriculture
Residential real estate
Consumer
Other
Total loans
Percentage to total loans
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$ 217,311,376 $ 1,323,883 $ 2,773,535 $
- $ 221,408,794
566,722,151
10,557,410
7,878,952
585,208,513
231,741,039
2,495,897
335,603
77,475
234,650,014
541,921,583
13,326,243
16,461,113
68,827
571,777,766
363,487,367
4,254,715
3,993,842
371,735,924
27,816,398
40,165
118,891
24,382
27,999,836
75,715,804 __18,624,734
- ___ _94.340.538
$ 2,024,765,718 $ 50,623,047 $ 31,561,936 $ 170,684 $2,107,121,385
96.22%
2.32%
1.45%
0.01%
100.00%

Pass

Special
Mention

Sub‐
Standard

Doubtful

Total
Loans

$ 307,675,147 $ 1,168,176 $
5,161,133 $
10,000 $ 314,014,456
502,629,669
9,131,091
8,035,316
- 519,796,076
170,490,434
4,614,227
971,118
31,010
176,106,789
463,984,611
9,800,111
15,064,071
73,872
488,922,665
346,010,471
6,581,675
4,848,023
81,447 357,521,616
19,578,729
23,673
135,312
47,842
19,785,556
69,074,227
19,458,348
88,532,575
$ 1,879,443,288 $ 50,777,301 $34,214,973 $
244,174 $1,964,679,733
95.66%
2.58%
1.74%
0.01%
100%

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 5. LOANS, continued
A loan’s risk grade is assigned at the inception of the loan and is based on the financial strength of the borrower
and the type of collateral. Loan risk grades are subject to reassessment at various times throughout the year
as part of the Company’s ongoing loan review process. Loans with an assigned risk grade of 7 or below are
reassessed on a quarterly basis. During this reassessment process individual reserves may be identified and
placed against certain loans which are not considered impaired.
Loans are considered past due if the required principal and interest payments have not been received as of the
date such payments were due. Generally, loans are placed on nonaccrual status if principal or interest
payments become 90 days past due or when, in management’s opinion, the borrower may be unable to meet
payment obligations as they become due, as well as when required by regulatory provision. Loans may be
placed on nonaccrual status regardless of whether or not such loans are considered past due. Interest is
accrued but not recognized as income on nonaccrual loans.

The following table represents an age analysis of past due loans and nonaccrual loans, segregated by class of
loans, as of December 31, 2021 and 2020.

December 31, 2021

Accruing Loans
Total
90 Days
Accruing
30‐89 Days or More Loans Past Nonaccrual Current
Past Due Past Due
Due
Loans
Loans

Commercial
Commercial real estate
Construction and land development
Agriculture
Residential real estate
Consumer
Other
Total loans

$

December 31, 2020

Accruing Loans
Total
90 Days
Accruing
30‐89 Days or More Loans Past Nonaccrual Current
Past Due Past Due
Due
Loans
Loans

Commercial
Commercial real estate
Construction and land development
Agriculture
Residential real estate
Consumer
Other
Total loans

$

$

$

709,303 $
817,063
319,431
4,666,902
2,859,519
145,534
9,517,752 $

Total
Loans

- $
709,303 $
122,757 $ 220,576,734 $221,408,794
817,063
39,381
584,352,069 585,208,513
11,709
331,140
154,136
234,164,738 234,650,014
27,574
4,694,476
453,891
566,629,399 571,777,766
116,954
2,976,473
411,328
368,348,123 371,735,924
10,665
156,199
24,382
27,819,255
27,999,836
94,340,538
94,340,538
166,902 $ _ 9,684,654 $ 1,205,875$2,096,230,856$2,107,121,385

767,484 $
1,297,614
367,554
330,176
42,123
3,270,020
516,117
3,733,385
311,168
177,792
3,074
101,566
9,678,037 $ 1,240,036

$

767,484
1,665,168
372,299
3,786,137
4,044,553
180,866
101,566
$ 10,918,073

Total
Loans

$

42,83 $313,204,134 $ 314,014,456
333,257
517,797,651 519,796,076
194,278
175,540,212 176,106,789
293,258
484,843,270 488,922,665
327,751
353,149,312 357,521,616
50,705
11,440,985
11,672,556
96,544,009 96,645,575
$ 1,242,087 $1,952,519,573$1,964,679,733
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 5. LOANS, continued
The following table details loans reviewed specifically for impairment at December 31, 2021 and 2020:
December 31, 2021
With No Related Allowance Recorded
Commercial
Commercial real estate
Construction and land development
Agriculture
Residential real estate
Consumer
Other
With an Allowance Recorded
Commercial
Commercial real estate
Construction and land development
Agriculture
Residential real estate
Total
Commercial
Commercial real estate
Construction and land development
Agriculture
Residential real estate
Consumer
Other

December 31, 2020
With No Related Allowance Recorded
Commercial
Commercial real estate
Construction and land development
Agriculture
Residential real estate
Consumer
Other
With an Allowance Recorded
Commercial
Commercial real estate
Construction and land development
Agriculture
Residential real estate
Total
Commercial
Commercial real estate
Construction and land development
Agriculture
Residential real estate
Consumer
Other
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Impaired
Balance

Average
Recorded
Investment

Related
Allowance

$ 7,235,938 $
24,079,503
630,286
2,230,562
34,176,289

- $ 5,657,381
24,282,145
670,136
813,502
11,431
31,434,595

-

-

7,235,938
24,079,503
630,286
2,230,562
$ 34,176,289

-

Impaired
Balance
$ 5,050,500 $
8,604,749
18,419,916
452,675
23,865
32,551,705
553,798
553,798
5,050,500
9,158,547
18,419,916
452,675
23,865
$ 33,105,503

$

Related
Allowance
105,051
105,051

Interest
Income
Recorded

$

Interest
Income
Collected

217,442 $
229,169
1,493,588
1,183,694
34,237
34,237
2,395
13,783
1,747,662
1,460,883

45,921
45,921

-

-

5,657,381
217,442
229,169
24,328,066
1,493,588
1,183,694
670,136
34,237
34,237
813,502
2,395
13,783
11,431
$ 31,480,516 $ 1,747,662 $ 1,460,883
Average
Recorded
Investment

Interest
Income
Recorded

Interest
Income
Collected

$3,368,584 $
98,637 $
110,448
8,182,599
383,560
510,524
288,023
19,358,455
1,006,241
1,023,186
659,041
24,635
22,634
30,619
1,324
1,424
31,887,321
1,514,397
1,668,216
70,000
947,940
810,207
362,046
2,190,193

33,930
33,930

37,332
37,332

3,438,584
105,051
9,130,539
288,023
20,168,662
1,021,087
30,619
$ 105,051 $34,077,514

98,637
417,490
1,006,241
24,635
1,324
$ 1,548,327

110,448
547,856
1,023,186
22,634
1,424
$ 1,705,548

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 5. LOANS, continued
In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, loans totaling
$34,176,288 in non-homogenous groups were reviewed specifically for impairment as of December 31, 2021
while $33,105,503 were reviewed as of December 31, 2020. Specific loan loss reserves of $0 and $105,051
were related to these loans as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. These reserves were held against
specific loan balances of $0 and $553,798 for 2021 and 2020, respectively. Income has been recognized on a
cash basis on these loans since being placed in impaired status. The average balance invested in impaired loans
was $31,480,516 and $34,077,514 in 2021 and 2020, respectively. All impaired loans as of December 31, 2021
and 2020 have been evaluated to determine whether a specific loan loss reserve is necessary.
Impaired loans include loans whose contractual terms have been restructured in a manner that grants a
concession to a borrower experiencing financial difficulties. Troubled debt restructurings (TDRs) are a subset
of impaired loans and totaled $1,067,318 and $887,822 at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
The following is a schedule of loans that are considered TDRs at December 31, 2021 and 2020:
Construction
& Land

Commercial
Real Estate

Residential

Ag

Real Estate

2021:

Number of contracts
Recorded investment at end of year
Loans previously restructured and have
subsequently defaulted

$

1
77,475

$

‐
‐

$

‐

$

1
758,191

$

2
231,652

$

‐

$

‐

$

‐

$

‐
‐

$

3
495,274

$

‐
‐

$

3
392,548

$

‐

$

‐

$

‐

$

‐

2020:

Number of contracts
Recorded investment at end of year
Loans previously restructured and have
subsequently defaulted

At December 31, 2021, four loans were considered to be TDRs. The concessions made by the Bank included
extending the interest only period, principal deferment, and interest rate reduction. Three TDR loans totaling
$309,127 are also recorded as a nonaccrual loans.

There have been no defaults on loans previously restructured during 2021. In the determination of the allowance
for loan losses, management considers troubled debt restructurings and subsequent defaults in these
restructurings.
Some loan modifications classified as TDR’s may not ultimately result in the full collection of principal and
interest, as modified, and result in potential incremental losses. These potential incremental losses have been
factored into our overall allowance for loan losses estimate. The level of any re-defaults will likely be affected
by future economic conditions. Loss exposure related to these loans is determined by management quarterly.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 5. LOANS, continued
The following tables detail activity in the allowance for loan losses, segregated by class of loan, for the years
ended December 31, 2021 and 2020. Allocation portion of the allowance to one category of loans does not
preclude its activity to absorb losses in other loan categories and periodically may result in reallocation within
the provision categories.
December 31, 2021

Commercial
Commercial real estate
Construction and land development
Agriculture
Residential real estate
Consumer
Bounce Protection
Other

December 31, 2020
Commercial
Commercial real estate
Construction and land development
Agriculture
Residential real estate
Consumer
Bounce Protection
Other

Beginning
Balance
$ 2,249,268
1,308,691
10,724,407
9,381,002
785,161
449,254
51,357
50,960
$ 25,000,100

Beginning
Balance
$ 1,719,789
948,827
7,344,559
6,855,927
521,527
317,817
70,031
73,075
$ 17,851,552

Charge‐
Offs

$

$

$

$

10,000
21,085
48,652
1,616
81,448
71,712
293,912
519
528,944

Charge‐
Offs

175,387
29,550
34,592
283,324
295,496
68,594
886,943

Recoveries Provision

$

$

155 $ 447,770
1,353
1,129,914
559,511
32,278
929,262
82,306
693,557
6,202
110,120
166,652
154,431
183,505
288,946 $ 4,208,070

Recoveries Provision
$

$

387
745
472,502
50,000
1,250
181,515
16,545
722,944

$

704,479
388,669
2,941,938
2,808,399
213,634
130,187
95,307
29,934
$ 7,312,547

Ending
Balance

$ 2,687,193
2,418,873
11,235,266
10,340,926
1,479,576
493,864
78,528
233,946
$ 28,968,172

Ending
Balance

$ 2,249,268
1,308,691
10,724,407
9,381,002
785,161
449,254
51,357
50,960
$25,000,100

The following table indicates the allocation of the allowance for loan losses based on loans evaluated
specifically for impairment and loans evaluated collectively for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020.
Individually
Evaluated
for
Impairment

Ending
Balance
Collectively
Evaluated for
Impairment

Total

2021:
Commercial
Commercial real estate
Construction and land development
Agriculture
Residential real estate
Consumer
Other
Ending balance of allowance for loan losses
Ending balance to total allowance ratio
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$

$

- $
- $
0%

3,242,767 $
8,182,886
4,052,004
6,729,754
4,634,313
797,497
1,328,951
28,968,172 $
100%

3,242,767
8,182,886
4,052,004
6,729,754
4,634,313
797,497
1,328,951
28,968,172
100%

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 5. LOANS, continued
Ending
Balance
Collectively
Evaluated for
Impairment

Individually
Evaluated
for
Impairment

Total

2020:
Commercial
Commercial real estate
Construction and land development
Agriculture
Residential real estate
Consumer
Other
Ending balance of allowance for loan losses
Ending balance to total allowance ratio

$

$

- $
105,051
105,051 $
0.42%

At December 31, 2021, the scheduled maturities of loans are as follows:
Three months or less
Over three months through twelve months
Over one year through three years
Over three years through five years
Over five years through fifteen years
Over fifteen years

2,249,267 $
1,308,692
10,619,356
9,381,002
785,161
449,254
102,317
24,895,049 $
99.58%

2,2429,267
1,308,692
10,724,407
9,381,002
785,161
449,254
102,317
25,000,100
100.00%

2021
$

145,252,094
375,478,121
275,230,426
566,254,235
438,046,412
306,860,097
$ 2,107,121,385

The Company originated loans to its customers under the Paycheck Protection Program (“PPP”) administered by
the Small Business Administration (“SBA”) under the provision of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and (“CARES Act”).
Loans covered by the PPP may be eligible for loan forgiveness. The remaining loan balances, if any, after this
forgiveness, are fully guaranteed by the SBA. As of December 31, 2021, the Company has funded approximately
$388,210,654 of SBA-approved PPP loans to customers. Loans totaling $328,635,278 have been repaid, leaving a
balance of $59,575,376. Under the terms of the program, the SBA will pay the lender a processing fee tiered by
the size of the loan (5% for loans less than $350,000, 3% for loans greater than $350,000 but less than $2.0 million,
and 1% for loans greater than $2.0 million). The Company received $20,071,442 in PPP loan related processing
fees net of expenses. For December 31, 2021, the Company recognized PPP loan fees of $10,455,136. For
December 31, 2020, the Company recognized PPP loan fees of $4,918,661 as current income. At December 31,
2021 unearned PPP fee income totaling $4,697,645 is recorded in other liabilities.
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NOTE 6. SERVICING
The Company sells loans to the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (Freddie Mac). At December 31, 2021
and 2020, one-to-four family residential mortgage loans held-for-sale were $10,793,613 and $17,687,219,
respectively.

Loans serviced for others are not included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The unpaid principal
balances of mortgage and other loans serviced for others were $668,666,495 and $600,796,328 at December 31,
2021 and 2020, respectively. Loans sold for the year ended December 31, 2021, totaled $202,123,369. The
balance on loans sold with recourse totaled $1,563,051 at December 31, 2021. Servicing rights are measured at
fair value. The fair values of servicing rights were $5,506,469 and $4,514,081, respectively, at December 31, 2021
and 2020. The fair value of servicing rights was determined using discount rates of 12%, prepayment speeds
averaging 14.89%, depending upon the stratification of the specific right, and a weighted average default rate of
.61%. Servicing fees earned and recorded in other service charges and fees totaled $1,547,882 and $1,277,589
for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
The following summarizes the activity pertaining to mortgage servicing rights:
Mortgage servicing rights:

Balance at beginning of year
Mortgage servicing rights capitalized
Mortgage servicing rights amortized
Fair value adjustments
Balance at end of year

2021

$

4,514,081
1,343,996
(1,450,453)
1,098,845

$

$

5,506,469

$

2020

4,647,937
2,153,575
(880,737)
(1,406,694)
4,514,081

NOTE 7. BANK PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT
Major classes of bank premises and equipment and the total accumulated depreciation as of December 31, 2021
and 2020, are as follows:
2021
2020
Land
Buildings and improvements
Furniture and equipment

Less accumulated depreciation

$

13,571,109
37,317,325
20,747,670
71,636,104
(25,104,996)

$

$

46,531,108

$

13,524,355
34,914,519
19,270,298
67,709,172
(23,187,302)
44,521,870

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 amounted to $2,293,948 and $1,872,975,
respectively. Software costs included in other assets at December 31, 2021 and 2020 totaled $3,193,297 and
$2,491,543, respectively. Amortization expense on software costs for the years ended December 31, 2021 and
2020 amounted to $387,737 and $281,246, respectively.
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Activity for foreclosed assets for December 31, 2021 and 2020 is as follows:
Balance at beginning of year
Properties acquired
Additional expenses
Subsequent write-downs
Gross proceeds from sales
Gains (loss) recorded
Balance at end of year

$

2021
7,042,906
‐
(339,554)
(5,592,482)
4,830

$

1,546,334

NOTE 9. DEPOSITS

Deposits (in thousands) at December 31, 2021 and 2020 were as follows:
Individuals, partnerships and corporations
U.S. Government
Commercial banks
States and political subdivisions

2020
$

$

2021
$

2,067,103
‐
416,762

$

$

2,483,865

$

8,394,341

47,776
(786,597)
(1,168,976)
(63,638)
7,042,906

2020

1,747,746
1
240,869
1,988,616

The aggregate amount of time deposits in denominations of $250,000 or more at December 31, 2021 and 2020
was $93,014,430 and $94,359,588, respectively. At December 31, 2021, the scheduled maturities of time deposits
(in thousands) are as follows:
2021

Three months or less
Over three months through twelve months
Over one year through three years
Over three years

$

19,338
32,617
16,749
24,310

$

93,014

The 1973 Regular Session of the Virginia General Assembly enacted Chapter 23 of Title 2.1, Code of Virginia
(1950), as amended, known as the Virginia Security for Public Deposits Act (“Act”). The Act substantially amended
the procedure and method of securing public deposits. In October, 2001 the Code of Virginia was recodified
placing the Virginia Security for Public Deposits Act under Chapter 44, Title 2.2 of the Code of Virginia. The Act
adopted the concept of mutuality of responsibility, involving a cross guarantee among all banks holding public
deposits. In the event of default of a bank having public funds on deposit, any uncollateralized and uninsured
public deposits will be collected by assessments against each participating bank for its proportionate share of the
loss based on the ratio that its average public deposits bears to the statewide average. To insure that
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the primary responsibility for security remains that of the bank holding public deposits, the Act requires that each
depository bank must collateralize its public deposits to the extent of the greater of (1) for each month, fifty
percent of the average daily balance of the first $50 million of public deposits, plus seventy-five percent of public
deposits above $50 million but less than $250 million, plus one hundred percent of public deposits above $250
million, held by the depository during the preceding calendar months, or (2) fifty percent of the first $50 million
of public deposits, plus seventy-five percent of public deposits in excess of $50 million but less than $250 million
plus one hundred percent of public deposits in excess of $250 million, of actual public deposits held at the close
of business on the last banking day in the prior month.
NOTE 10. SHORT‐TERM DEBT

Short-term debt consists of federal funds purchased. Federal funds purchased include reserves at the Federal
Reserve or correspondent bank purchased on a daily basis to satisfy reserve requirements. Federal funds
purchased at December 31, 2021 and 2020 totaled $-0- and $-0-, respectively.
NOTE 11. LONG‐TERM DEBT

The Company has advances of long-term debt from the FHLB totaling $75,791,499 and $93,459,914 at December
31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. The advances are secured by residential real estate, commercial and farmland
loans and have various scheduled maturity dates beginning with June 27, 2022 through September 30, 2030. The
weighted average interest rate on the advances was 2.06% at December 31, 2021. The current remaining
available credit the company has with the FHLB totals $68,726,626. Loans totaling $472,752,597 are pledged as
collateral.

The Company has a line of credit in the amount of $8,000,000 established with AgCredit under an agreement
dated February 27, 2002. There was no outstanding balance due at December 31, 2021 or 2020. Loans totaling
$9,474,964 are pledged as collateral against this line of credit. The Company has available credit in the amount
of $115,000,000 established with four correspondent banks under various agreements. There were no
outstanding balances due under these agreements at December 31, 2021 or 2020. In addition, the Company has
a secured line of credit with the Federal Reserve totaling $198,122,190. There was no outstanding balance due
under this line of credit at December 31, 2021 or 2020. Loans totaling $285,615,647 are pledged as collateral
against the Federal Reserve credit.
The Company had a note payable dated April, 2016 in the amount of $500,000 bearing interest at 4% which
matured on April 22, 2021. The note was repaid on that date.
The Company had a note payable dated May, 2016 in the amount of $950,000 bearing interest at 4% which
matured on May 19, 2021. The note was repaid on that date.

The Company had a note payable dated June, 2016 in the amount of $500,000 bearing interest at 4% which
matured on June 17, 2021. The note was repaid on that date.
The Company had a note payable dated May, 2016 in the amount of $2,500,000 bearing interest at 4% which
matured on May 19, 2021. The note was repaid on that date.
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Long-term debt at December 31, 2021 matures as follows:
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
Thereafter

$

3,205,538
2,286,680
8,761,851
3,997,166
13,730,492
43,809,772

$

75,791,499

NOTE 12. TRUST PREFERRED SECURITIES
On September 20, 2004, First Bancorp (VA) Statutory Trust I issued $4.5 million of floating rate trust preferred
securities and $140,000 common stock. First Bancorp (VA) Statutory Trust I, a Delaware Statutory business trust
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, with its sole assets being $4.5 million aggregate principal amount
of Floating Rate Junior Subordinated Debt Securities due September 24, 2034 of First Bancorp, Inc. (the trust
debenture).

The trust preferred securities are non-voting, pay quarterly distributions at a variable rate, and carry a liquidation
value of $1,000 per share. The variable rate is LIBOR plus 2.20% (2.41% at December 31, 2021) and distributions
for 2021 on the trust preferred securities and stock totaled $107,855. The Company has executed a guarantee
with regard to the trust preferred securities. The guarantee, when taken together with the Company’s obligations
under the trust debenture, the indenture pursuant to which the trust debenture was issued and the applicable
trust document, provides a full and unconditional guarantee of the trust’s obligations under the trust preferred
securities.
After September 24, 2010, the trust preferred securities are redeemable, at the option of the Company, for a
redemption price of $1,000 per share. The trust preferred securities are subject to a mandatory redemption on
September 24, 2034, at a redemption price of $1,000 per share.

On August 5, 2008, First Bancorp (VA) Statutory Trust II issued $5.0 million of floating rate trust preferred
securities and $155,000 common stock. First Bancorp (VA) Statutory Trust II, a Delaware Statutory business trust
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, with its sole assets being $5.0 million aggregate principal amount
of Floating Rate Junior Subordinated Debt Securities due August 15, 2035 of First Bancorp, Inc. (the trust
debenture).
The trust preferred securities are non-voting, pay quarterly distributions at a variable rate, and carry a liquidation
value of $1,000 per share. The variable rate is LIBOR plus 1.59% (1.79% at December 31, 2021) and distributions
for 2021 on the trust preferred securities and stock totaled $88,645. The Company has executed a guarantee with
regard to the trust preferred securities. The guarantee, when taken together with the Company’s obligations
under the trust debenture, the indenture pursuant to which the trust preferred debenture was issued and the
applicable trust document provides a full obligation under the trust preferred securities.
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After August 15, 2010, the trust preferred securities are redeemable, at the option of the Company, for a
redemption price of $1,000 per share. The trust preferred securities are subject to a mandatory redemption on
August 15, 2035, at a redemption price of $1,000 per share. First Bancorp, Inc. may cause the trust to delay
payment of distributions on the trust preferred securities. During such deferral periods, distributions to which
holders of the trust preferred securities were entitled will compound quarterly in arrears at the applicable rate
for each period.
NOTE 13. INCOME TAXES

Consolidated net deferred tax assets consist of the following components:
Deferred tax assets:
Loan loss allowance
Deferred retirement
Nonaccrual interest
OREO property write-downs
Impaired investments, other
Unrealized loss on securities available-for-sale, net

2021
$

Deferred tax liabilities:
Bank premises and equipment
Accretion of discounts, net
Servicing rights
Unrealized gain on securities available-for-sale, net

2020

6,074,495 $
1,452,901
54,566
83,870
160,789
169,463
7,996,084

5,402,481
1,265,093
60,399
580,877
160,789
7,469,639

1,428,412
3,800
705,808
‐
2,138,020

Net deferred tax assets

$

Total income taxes

$

Total income taxes

$

1,143,133
580,050
43,065
1,766,248

5,858,064 $

5,703,391

The provision for consolidated income taxes charged to operations for the years ended December 31, 2021 and
2020 consists of the following:
2021
2020
Current tax expense
$
11,400,036
$
9,735,293
Deferred tax expense
57,855
(1,776,334 )
11,457,891

$

7,958,959

$

7,958,959

The income tax provision differs from the amount of income tax determined by applying the applicable U.S.
federal tax rate to pretax income for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 due to the following:
2020
2021
$
11,254,592
$
8,424,359
Computed expected tax expense
Tax-exempt interest
(170,789)
(203,685)
Disallowed interest expense to carry tax-exempts
3,733
5,811
Rate change for remeasured deferred tax assets
Other, net
370,355
(267,526)
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The Company files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction, and the State of Virginia. The company has
evaluated the tax positions taken or expected to be taken in future tax returns and does not believe it has any
uncertain tax positions. Deferred tax expenses and benefits are recorded by the bank. Current income tax expense
or benefit is recorded at the parent level and subsidiaries’ level according to their respective taxable income or
loss. Interest and penalties associated with any tax assessments are recorded as interest expense and noninterest
expense, respectively. December 31, 2018 through December 31, 2020 remain open for audits by tax authorities.
There is no valuation allowance for deferred tax assets at December 31, 2021 and 2020 as the Company believes
it is more likely than not that all of the deferred tax assets will be realized because they are supported by
recordable taxes paid in prior years.
NOTE 14. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

The holding company’s principal assets are investments in the wholly-owned consolidated subsidiary Bank. The
principal source of income for the holding company is dividends from the Bank. Regulatory agencies limit the
amount of funds that may be transferred from the Bank to the holding company in the form of dividends, loans,
or advances. Dividend payments are made from dividends received from its subsidiary which amounted to
$15,258,105 for 2021 and $12,438,874 for 2020.
Banking laws and regulations limit the amount of dividends that may be paid without prior approval of the
regulatory agency. Under the minimum capital guidelines, $159,710,080 was available for such payment at
December 31, 2021 with the bank maintaining the prescribed level of capital.

Legal lending limits on loans to First Bancorp, Inc. (Parent) are governed by Federal Reserve Act 23A and differ
from legal lending limits on loans to external customers. Generally, a bank may lend up to 10% of its capital and
surplus to its parent, if the loan is secured. If collateral is in the form of stocks, bonds, debentures or similar
obligations, it must have a market value when the loan is made of at least 20% more than the amount of the loan,
and if obligations of a state or political subdivision or agency thereof, it must have a market value of at least 10%
more than the amount of the loan. If such loans are secured by obligations of the United States or agencies thereof,
or notes, drafts, bills of exchange or bankers’ acceptances eligible for rediscount or purchase by a Federal Reserve
Bank, requirements for collateral in excess of loan amount do not apply. Under this definition, the combined legal
lending limit for First Bancorp’s subsidiary on loans to the Parent is $2,014,312 for December 31, 2021.
Substantially all undivided profits of the Parent are represented by undistributed earnings of the Subsidiary.
Earnings per share are computed on weighted average number of shares outstanding of 8,291,050 shares at
December 31, 2021 and 8,293,414 at December 31, 2020.

The Company, including the Bank, is subject to various regulatory capital requirements by the various banking
agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possible additional
discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a material effect on the Company’s and Bank’s
financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective
action, the Company and the Bank must meet specific guidelines that involve quantitative measures of their assets,
liabilities and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The capital
amounts are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and other
factors. Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the company and the
Bank to maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the following table) of total and Tier 1 capital (as
defined in the regulations) to risk-weighted assets (as defined). As of December 31, 2021, the most recent
notification from the federal banking agencies categorized the Company and the Bank as “well capitalized” under
the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. There are no conditions or events since these
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notifications that management believes have changed the institution’s categories. The Company and
the Bank’s actual capital amounts and ratios are presented in the following table (dollars in thousands):
Actual Capital

2021:
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets)
Consolidated
Subsidiary bank
Total Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets)
Consolidated
Subsidiary bank
Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets)
Consolidated
Subsidiary bank
Common Equity (to RWA)
Consolidated
Subsidiary bank

2020:
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets)
Consolidated
Subsidiary bank
Total Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets)
Consolidated
Subsidiary bank
Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets)
Consolidated
Subsidiary bank
Common Equity (to RWA)
Consolidated
Subsidiary bank
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Ratio
14.27%
14.68%

Amount
$

270,648
268,361

16.04%
15.93%

293,600
291,293

9.76%
9.68%

270,648
268,361

14.27%
14.68%

261,148
268,361

16.25%
16.28%

17.50%
17.53%

10.62%
10.64%

15.61%
16.28%

$

243,259
243,556

Minimum Requirements
Well
Adequately
Capitalized
Capitalized

8.00%
8.00%

6.00%
6.00%

5.00%
5.00%

4.00%
4.00%

10.00%
10.00%

6.50%
6.50%

4.50%
4.50%

8.00%
8.00%

6.00%
6.00%

5.00%
5.00%

4.00%
4.00%

262,055
262,332

10.00%
10.00%

233,759
243,556

6.50%
6.50%

243,259
243,556

8.00%
8.00%

8.00%
8.00%

4.50%
4.50%

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 15. COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Comprehensive income consists of net income and other comprehensive income. Other comprehensive income
includes unrealized gains and losses on securities available-for-sale. The components of other comprehensive
income and related tax effects for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:
2021

Unrealized holding (losses) gains on available-for-sale
securities
Reclassification adjustment for gains (losses) realized
in income

$

‐

Net-of-tax effect

NOTE 16. OTHER INFORMATION

$

373,055

29,059

(1,011,781)

Net unrealized gains

Tax effect

(1,011,781)

2020

402,114

212,474
$

(799,307)

$

(107,401)
294,713

The principal components of other income and other expense in the statements of income for the years ended
December 31, 2021 and 2020 are:
2021

Other income:
Other (no items in excess of 1% of total revenues)

Other expenses:
Franchise taxes
Debit card fees
FDIC assessments
Advertising
Professional Fees
Data processing
Other (no items in excess of 1% of total revenues)

$

1,746,426

$

2,044,811
1,189,772
651,000
818,965
876,714
2,461,141
10,409,081
$

18,451,484

$

2020

1,018,133
1,876,929
1,365,068
504,000
671,291
752,613
1,985,019
7,977,805

15,132,725
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The Company’s primary source of revenue is net interest income on financial assets and liabilities which is
explicitly excluded from the scope of ASC Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, and non-interest
income. The company’s significant sources of non-interest income are service charges on deposits, other
service charges and fees, trust and investment income and bank owned life insurance (which is also excluded
from ASC 606).
The following table shows the Company’s total non-interest income segregated between those within the scope
of ASC 606 and those within the scope of other GAAP topics:
Non-Interest Income
Non-interest income from contracts with customers
Non-interest income within the scope of other GAAP topics

Total Non-Interest Income

$
$

14,298,291
7,484,654

21,782,945

The Company’s significant policies related to contracts with customers are discussed below:

Service Charge on Deposits: Service charges on deposit accounts consist of monthly service fees, account
analysis fees, non-sufficient funds fees, sweep fees, and other deposit account related fees. For transactionbased fees, the Company’s performance obligation is generally satisfied, and the related revenue recognized, at
a point in time. For non-transaction-based fees, the Company’s performance obligation is generally satisfied,
and the related revenue recognized, over the period in which the service is provided (typically a month).
Generally, payments are received immediately through a direct charge to the customer’s account.

Other Service Charges, Commissions, and Fees: For transaction-based fees, the Company’s performance
obligation is generally satisfied, and the related revenue recognized, at a point in time. For non-transactionbased fees, the Company’s performance obligation is generally satisfied, and the related revenue recognized,
over the period in which the service is provided (typically a month). Generally, payments are received
immediately through a direct charge to the customer’s account.

Check Card Fees: Check Card revenue is primarily comprised of debit card income and ATM fees. Debit Card
revenue is primarily comprised of interchange fees earned whenever the Company’s debit cards are processed
through card payment networks such as VISA. ATM fees are primarily generated when a non-Company
cardholder uses a Company ATM or when a Company cardholder uses a non-Company ATM. The Company’s
performance obligation for check card revenue is generally satisfied, and the related revenue recognized, when
the services are rendered. Generally, payments are received immediately or in the following month.

Trust and Investment Management Fee Income: Trust and investment management fee income is primarily
comprised of fees earned from the management and administration of customer assets. The Company’s
performance obligation is generally satisfied over time (typically quarter) and the related revenue is
recognized, based upon the quarter-end market value of the assets under management and the applicable fee
rate. Generally, payments are received a few days after quarter-end through a direct charge to the customer’s
accounts.
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The following table illustrates the disaggregation by the Company’s major revenue streams:
Major Revenue Streams:
Service Charges
Other service charges, commissions, and fees
Check card fees
Trust and management fee income
Net Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Non-interest income within scope of other GAAP topics
Total Non-Interest Income

NOTE 18. LEASE OBLIGATIONS

$

$

2,621,897
5,539,539
4,412,691
1,724,164
14,298,291
7,484,654
21,782,945

Equipment Leases: In the normal course of business, the Company has entered into operating leases for
equipment. Expenses under these leases for years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 were $256,179 and
$74,165, respectively.
Land Leases: The Company has entered into two land leases. The first lease was entered into in 2000 for a term
of thirty years. The current monthly payment for this lease is $5,094. Lease payments are adjusted at five-year
intervals by five percent until the year 2025. The Company also entered into a thirty-year land lease beginning
March 1, 2008. The current monthly lease payment is $6,050. At each five-year interval, the monthly lease rate
increases by ten percent.

Real Estate Leases: The Company renewed a three-year real estate lease in October, 2019 with current monthly
payments of $4,117. The Company renewed a five-year real estate lease in November, 2018 with current monthly
payments of $3,500. The Company renewed a one-year real estate lease in December, 2021 with current monthly
payments of $1,876. The Company renewed a three-year lease beginning August, 2018 with current monthly
payments of $1,350. In February, 2017 the Company entered into a three-year real estate lease with current
monthly payments of $3,420. In August, 2017 the Company entered into a five-year real estate lease with current
monthly payments of $2,900. The Company entered into a five-year real estate lease in February, 2019 with
current monthly payments of $2,490. The Company entered into a five-year real estate lease in March, 2019 with
current monthly payments of $4,175. The Company entered into a six-year real estate lease in November, 2019
with current monthly payments of $3,900. The Company entered into a three-year real estate lease in December,
2020 with current monthly payments of $3,285. The Company entered into a five-year real estate lease in January,
2021 with current monthly payments of $2,281. The Company entered into a five-year real estate lease in
February, 2021 with current monthly payments of $1,573. The Company entered into a four-year real estate lease
in February, 2021 with current monthly payments of $1,637. The Company entered into a forty-month real estate
lease in November, 2021 with current monthly payments of $500. The Company entered into a one-year real
estate lease in November, 2021 with current monthly payments of $875. Rent expense under the land and real
estate leases for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 were $638,543 and $564,184, respectively.
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Minimum future lease payments on these leases are as follows:
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
Thereafter

$

525,313
436,695
325,883
244,994
163,221
1,204,008
2,900,114

$

The Company leases property to commercial customers. Rental income recorded on this property for the years
ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 amounted to $182,868 and $230,848, respectively.
NOTE 19. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to
meet the financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit,
standby letters of credit and other commitments. Those instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of
credit risk in excess of the amount recognized in the statements of financial position. The contract amounts of
these instruments reflect the extent of involvement the Company has in particular classes of financial instruments.

The Company’s exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial
instrument for commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual
amount of those instruments. The Company uses the same credit policies in making commitments and conditional
obligations as it does for on-balance-sheet instruments. Unless noted otherwise, the Company requires that
financial instruments with credit risk be collateralized with deeds of trust.

Financial instruments whose contract amounts represent credit risk:
Standby letters of credit
Revolving home equity lines
Unused loan commitments

Contract Amounts
at December 31, (in thousands)
2021
2020

$

20,888
15,555
596,416

$

17,124
19,088
476,982

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any
condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination
clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without being
drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The
Company evaluates each customer’s creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained,
if deemed necessary by the Company, is based on management’s credit evaluation of the counterparty. Collateral
held varies but may include accounts receivable, inventory, property, plant and equipment, and incomeproducing commercial properties. For unused loan commitments, interest rates could be fixed or variable.
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Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the performance of a
customer to a third party. Those letters-of-credit are primarily issued to support public and private borrowing
arrangements, including commercial paper, bond financing and similar transactions. Essentially all letters of
credit issued have review dates within one year. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially
the same as that involved in extending loan facilities to customers. The Company generally holds collateral
supporting those commitments, and at December 31, 2021 and 2020, such collateral was in excess of $20,888,000
and $17,124,000, respectively.

The Company and Subsidiary are subject to claims and lawsuits which arise principally in the ordinary course of
business. It is the opinion of management that the disposition or ultimate resolution of such claims and lawsuits
will not have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial position of the Company.
NOTE 20. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The Company has banking transactions in the ordinary course of business with directors, principal officers, their
immediate families and affiliated companies in which they are principal stockholders (commonly referred to as
related parties), all of which have been, in the opinion of management, on the same terms, including interest rates
and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with others. Aggregate loan
transactions with related parties are as follows:
Years Ended December 31,
2021
2020
Balance, beginning
New loans
Repayments
Relationship change
Balance, ending

$

$

5,458,396 $
608,757
(4,249,162)
248,308
2,066,299 $

4,228,533
2,979,522
(1,749,659)
5,458,396

Deposits from related parties held by the Bank at December 31, 2021 and 2020 amounted to $9,122,274 and
$9,646,418, respectively.
NOTE 21. EMPLOYEE STOCK OWNERSHIP AND SAVINGS PLAN

On January 1, 1993, the Company established an Employee Stock Ownership (ESOP) and Savings Plan. The Plan
consists of two portions, the ESOP and the 401(k) portions. Substantially all the employees who meet the
eligibility requirements are covered by the Plan. The Plan acquired 8,000 shares of common stock on August 24,
1993. The stock was acquired by the Plan using funds rolled over from the former 401(k) plan and a loan obtained
from the Company’s banking subsidiary. The Company makes cash payments to the Plan, consisting of
contributions and dividend payments, in amounts sufficient for it to satisfy service requirements. Acquisitions of
common stock from corporation per year have been: 1994 - 4,000 shares; 1995 – 11,428 shares; 1998 – 7,140
shares; 2001 - 4,000 shares; 2003 - 12,600 shares; 2004 - 3,762 shares; 2006 - 14,324 shares; 2007 - 9,458 shares;
2008 – 1,860 shares; 2009 – 20,484 shares; 2010 – 2,950 shares; 2011 – 10,658 shares; 2012 – 11,832 shares;
2013 – 24,668 shares; 2014 – 15,040 shares; 2015 – 14,630 shares; 2016 - 16,278 shares; 2017 – 24,680 shares;
2018 – 20,735 shares; 2019-23,290 shares; 2020- 22,767 shares; 2021- 14,776 shares. Cash payments to the Plan
during the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 were $928,470 and $842,823 respectively. Shares owned
by the plan at December 31, 2021 and 2020, totaled 281,512 and 348,493, respectively. There were no
unallocated shares at December 31, 2021.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 21. EMPLOYEE STOCK OWNERSHIP AND SAVINGS PLAN, continued
Dividends paid to the plan totaled $571,104 and $521,166 for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively.

The Company has adopted a nonqualified tax retirement plan for executive officers to supplement benefits such
executives can receive under the Company’s ESOP Plan. Under the plan, benefits are accrued each year and are
dependent on the Company’s performance. To fund the plan, the Company has invested in bank owned life
insurance. At December 31, 2021 and 2020, the carrying value of this investment was $45,844,700 and
$43,983,546 respectively. The Company also entered into a nonqualified Plan for two key executives to
supplement life insurance post-retirement in the amount of $1,850,000. Benefits accrued and recorded in other
liabilities at December 31, 2021 and 2020, were $7,308,980 and $6,359,406 respectively. The amount of expenses
recorded for 2021 and 2020 were $1,534,376 and $1,373,772, respectively.
NOTE 22. UNAUDITED INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION
The following unaudited data includes, in the opinion of management, all adjustments (consisting only of normal
recurring accruals) necessary to present fairly the results of operations for such periods:
2021:
Interest income
Interest expense
Provision for possible loan losses
Other income
Other expense
Income before tax expense
Income tax expense
Net income
Net income per share
2020:

Interest income
Interest expense
Provision for possible loan losses
Other income
Other expense
Income before tax expense
Income tax expense
Net income
Net income per share
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March 31
$
22,867
2,282
420
5,676
13,322
12,519
2,629
$
9,890
$
1.19

$

$
$

March 31

Three Months Ended
(In Thousands of Dollars Except Per Share Data)
June 30
September 30
December 31
$
23,871 $
28,681 $
28,037
2,244
2,230
2,171
400
813
2,579
5,734
5,524
4,849
14,120
15,561
15,504
12,841
15,601
12,632
2,685
3,288
2,856
$
10,156 $
12,313 $
9,776
$
1.23 $
1.48 $
1.18

21,484 $
3,643
415
3,235
12,200
8,461
1,776
6,685 $
0.81 $

June 30

September 30

28,183 $
2,766
5,312
5,199
13,129
12,175
1,917
10,258 $
1.24 $

21,640 $
2,573
623
5,214
13,156
10,502
2,418
8,084 $
0.97 $

December 31

19,556
2,426
963
7,012
14,201
8,978
1,848
7,130
0.86

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 23. PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Condensed financial information of First Bancorp, Inc. (Parent Company) is presented below:
BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

2021
ASSETS
Cash and noninterest-bearing deposits in banks
Investments in subsidiary, at equity
Other assets

LIABILITIES
Accrued interest
Notes payable

2020

$

727,584
270,292,971
98,700

$

$

271,119,255

$

249,006,216

$

7,292
‐
7,292

$

27,323
4,450,000
4,477,323

9,500,000

TRUST PREFERRED SECURITIES

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Common stock
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive income

9,500,000

10,524,640
248,040
251,773,844
(637,301)

Treasury stock at cost (14,449 shares at 2021 and
24,765 shares at 2020)

10,524,640
248,040
224,896,545
162,006

(297,260)
261,611,963
$

271,119,255

1,529,155
247,287,441
189,620

$

(802,338 )
235,028,893

249,006,216
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NOTE 23. PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL INFORMATION, continued
STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years Ended
2021

Dividends from banking subsidiary
Other income

$

Expenses:
Professional fees
Amortization of intangibles
Interest expense
Other operating expenses
Income before income tax benefit and
equity in undistributed income of subsidiary
Federal income tax benefit

Income before equity in undistributed income of
subsidiary

Equity in undistributed income of subsidiary
Net income
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17,918,105
‐
17,918,105

$

14,238,874
12,219
14,251,093

3,199
7,050
265,469
463,805
739,523

1,875
7,050
434,626
471,474
915,025

17,178,582
152,000

13,336,068
187,766

17,330,582

13,523,834

24,804,821
$

2020

42,135,403

$

18,633,204

32,157,038

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 23. PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL INFORMATION, continued
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Increase in equity in undistributed

Years Ended
2021
$

(24,804,821)
1,090,905

income of subsidiary
Decrease in other assets
Increase (decrease) in other
liabilities

(20,031))
18,401,456

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of securities
Capitalization of subsidiaries

( 18,633,204)
138,486

(6,249)

13,656,071
-

‐

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash dividends
Treasury stock transactions, net
Repayment of Long - term Debt

(15,258,105)
505,078
(4,450,000)
(19,203,027)

Net cash used in financing activities

(801,571)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and due from banks

Ending

32,157,038

‐
‐

Net cash provided by investing activities

Cash and due from banks
Beginning

42,135,403 $

2020

1,529,155
$

727,584 $

-

(12,438,874)
(486,109)
-

(12,924,983)
731,088

798,067

1,529,155
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